
 

 

 

 
 
 

I. Call to Order 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Roll Call 

 
LINCOLN PARK PLANNING COMMISSION 

 CITY HALL – COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS 1355 SOUTHFIELD 

ROAD LINCOLN PARK, MICHIGAN 
 
January 10, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
AGENDA 

IV. Approval of previous minutes  

V. Approval of Agenda 
 

VI. Old Business – None  

VII. New Business  

A. 3419 Fort St. (Restaurant) – Site Plan Review 
B. 4057 Dix (Car Wash) – Conceptual Review for Special Land Use 
C. Officer Elections 
D. Annual Report 
E. Sample Bylaws 

VIII. Policy Review and Discussion - None 

IX. Reports from Departments and Other Boards and Commissions 

A. Master Plan – Steering Committee Report 

X. Public Comments 

XI. Comments from Planning Commissioners 

XII. Adjournment 
 

 

 

The City of Lincoln Park will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for 
the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed material being considered at the meeting to individuals 
with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seven (7) days prior notice to the City of Lincoln Park. 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aides or services should contact the City of Lincoln Park by 
writing or calling the following: The Building Department, 1355 Southfield Road, Lincoln Park, MI 
48146(313) 386-1800 Ext. 1296 









 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 





 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 





 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 



 



§1296.02 
B. Automobile and Other Vehicle Wash Establishments  

1. A minimum front yard setback of twenty (20) feet shall be required for all structures.  
2. Required off-street parking and vehicle waiting areas shall be provided in accordance with Chapter 1290, 

Off-Street Parking and Loading. 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 



F
O

R
D

L
I
N

E
 
S

T
.

MORAN AVE.

KEY  PLAN

ST. JOHNS BLVD.

SITE

BREST ST.

A
B

B
O

T
T

 
A

V
E

.

SHOWN

DAVID

PROJECT #

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE

SP1

SHEET NO.

26520 GRAND RIVER
STE. 101

SKETCH DESIGN GROUP

REDFORD, MI 48240
(248)-890-3036

Email: sketchtimedesign@ gmail.com

ARCHITECT / ENGINEER SEAL :

REV # ISSUED FOR

16920

28947 GLENBROOK
FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48331
PHONE: 504-376-6498

HARVARD ENGINEERING

PLAN REVIEW
08/29/17

EXISTING  SITE  PLAN  @  SCALE  1" = 20' - 0"

INDEX:

SHT. SP1 EXISTING SITE PLAN

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

QM96A 113A TO 119A N 142 FT. OF LOT 96 AND ADJ VAC ALLEY

16 FT. WD ALSO LOTS 113 TO 119 EXC WLY PT MEAS 49.36 FT.

ON N LINE AND 52.91 FT. ON S LINE DIX AVENUE MANOR NO. 1

SUB PC 116 L47 P38 WCR.

PARCEL ID:  # 82 45 022 05 0096 001

DATA:

GROSS SITE AREA = 19,155 SQ. FT.

EXISTING BUILDING = 3,871 SQ. FT.

USE GROUP = GROUP B

CONSTRUCTION TYPE = IIB

ZONING = MUNICIPAL BUSINESS DISTRICT

MICHIGAN BUILDING CODE 2015

AERIAL  VIEW

D
I
X

 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

ST. JOHNS BLVD.

D
I
X

 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

EX. 4 FT. HIGH MASONRY

BLOCK WALL

EX. 4 FT. HIGH CHAIN LINK

FENCE

EX. BERM

EX. CREEK

G

O

D

D

A

R

D

 
S

T

.

Q
U

A
LI

T
Y

 A
U

T
O

 W
A

S
H

40
57

 D
IX

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

LI
N

C
O

LN
 P

A
R

K
, M

I 

QUALITY AUTO WASH
4057 DIX HIGHWAY
LINCOLN PARK, MI 

EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING APPROACH

GREENBELT AREA

EXISTING MONUMENT

SIGN

EXISTING ASPHALT LOT

E
N

T
E

R

E
X

I
T

83'-9"

2
0

'
-
0

"
6

'
-
4

"
5

1
'
-
8

"

44'-0"61'-8"32'-9"

VACUUM AREA

VEHICLE STACKING (TYP.)

61'-8"

33'-4"

28'-4"

7
0

'
-
4

"

5
6

'
-
4

"

1
4

2
'
-
0

"

2
9

'
-
0

"

1
1
3
'
-
6
"

117'-0"

OWNER:

ODELL LECHEVALIER

11681 SYCAMORE

PLYMOUTH, MI 48170

PHONE:  734-620-8225

REVISION

12/11/17
1

106.50'  P. L.

106.50'  P. L.

1
4

2
.
0

0
'
 
 
P

.
 
L

.

1
4

2
.
0

0
'
 
 
P

.
 
L

.

ZONING

SINGLE

FAMILY

RESIDENTIAL

EXISTING SIDEWALK

POLE MOUNTED

LIGHT FIXTURE (SHIELDED)

TRASH RECEPTACLE (TYP.)

WALL PACK LIGHTING

UNITS (SHIELDED)

NOTES:

1. EXISTING SIGNAGE TO REMAIN.  NO SIGNAGE

TO BE PROPOSED.

2. ALL EXISTING SCREENING, WALLS AND

FENCING TO REMAIN.  NO CHANGE TO EXISTING.

LANDSCAPED AREA

SHRUBS (TYP.)

LANDSCAPED AREA

ORNAMENTAL TREE

PLEASE NOTE:

QUALITY AUTO WASH IS AN EXISTING STRUCTURE.

THERE IS NO FURTHER DEVELOPMENT REQUIRED

FOR THIS SITE.

5
 
S

P
.
 
@

 
8

'
 
X

 
2

3
'

L
O

A
D

I
N

G
 
Z

O
N

E
 
-
 
1

0
'
 
X

 
5

0
'



EXISTING 10 FT. X 8 FT. HT. OVERHEAD

DOOR (TYP.)

SINK (TYP.)

6
1

'
-
8

"

70'-4"

2
8

'
-
4

"

14'-0"

3
3

'
-
4

"

56'-4"

SHOWN

DAVID

PROJECT #

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE

A1

SHEET NO.

26520 GRAND RIVER
STE. 101

SKETCH DESIGN GROUP

REDFORD, MI 48240
(248)-890-3036

Email: sketchtimedesign@gmail.com

ARCHITECT / ENGINEER SEAL :

REV # ISSUED FOR

16920

28947 GLENBROOK DRIVE
FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48331
PHONE: 504-376-6498

HARVARD ENGINEERING

Q
U

A
LI

T
Y

 A
U

T
O

 W
A

S
H

40
57

 D
IX

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

LI
N

C
O

LN
 P

A
R

K
, M

I 

PLAN REVIEW
12/11/17

ARCHITECT / ENGINEER SEAL :

EXISTING  FLOOR  PLAN  @  

1

4

"  =  1'-0"

36" DR. 36" DR.

36" DR.

36" DR.

AUTO WASH AREA

OFFICE

ENTRY
MEN H.C.

WOMEN H.C.

AUTO DETAILING AREA

19'-7" 5" 19'-4" 5" 6'-9" 5" 6'-8" 5" 14'-4"

1
0

'
-
1

0
"

5
"

1
5

'
-
1

"

MECHANICAL /

EQUIPMENT AREA

2
6

'
-
4

"
2

'
-
0

"
3

1
'
-
4

"

TOILET (TYP.)

HANDICAP GRAB

BARS (TYP.)



8
'
-
8

"
5

'
-
9

"

1
9

'
-
1

1
"

4

12

4

12

8
'
-
8

"

1
9

'
-
1

1
"

FASCIA BOARD

VINYL SIDING

EXISTING ROOF

EXISTING MASONRY BLOCK

NORTH  ELEVATION  @  

1

4

"  =  1'-0"

SOUTH  ELEVATION  @  

1

4

"  =  1'-0"

4

12

4

12

EAST  ELEVATION  @  

1

4

"  =  1'-0"

SHOWN

DAVID

PROJECT #

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE

A2

SHEET NO.

26520 GRAND RIVER
STE. 101

SKETCH DESIGN GROUP

REDFORD, MI 48240
(248)-890-3036

Email: sketchtimedesign@gmail.com

ARCHITECT / ENGINEER SEAL :

REV # ISSUED FOR

16920

28947 GLENBROOK DRIVE
FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48331
PHONE: 504-376-6498

HARVARD ENGINEERING

PLAN REVIEW
12/11/17

ARCHITECT / ENGINEER SEAL :

Q
U

A
LI

T
Y

 A
U

T
O

 W
A

S
H

40
57

 D
IX

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

LI
N

C
O

LN
 P

A
R

K
, M

I 

EXISTING OVERHEAD DOOR (TYP.)













Case No. PPCr l-DDD?
Date Submitt "o 3 3l

City of Lincoln Park
APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEII/

NOTICE TO AI'PLICANT: Applicatiorrs for Site Plan Revierv by the Plartrring Conunissiorr nrust be
srrbrrined to the City in substcutticrlll,contplete.fbntt at least thirtr,(30) clays prior to the
Planning Comnrissiorr nreetin_q at rvhich the proposal rvill be considered. TIre application rnust be
accorrpanied by the data specified in the Zoning Ordinance and Site Plan Revielr'Guidelines. irrcludin-u
firlly dirnensioned site plarrs. plus the required revierv fees. Regulal nreetings of the Plannirrg
Cornrlission are held on the second Wednesday of each nronth at 7:00 p.nt. All meetin-ss are helci at
the Lincoln Park Citv l-lall. 1355 Southfield Road. Lincoln Park. Michigan 48146. Phone nunrber
(3 I 3) 386-l 800: Fax (3 I 3) 386-2205.

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT:

I (rve) the undersigned. do hereby respectfully reqlrest Site Plarr Revierv and provide the follorving infornration
to assist in tlre revierv ,4Applicant:

Mailing Address:

Address: E
Telephone:

Properly Orvner(s) (if diff-erent fi'oni Applicant):

7
O

2

d o r'Ll
( Fax:

'7 /, t/)

Mailin-s Address:

Telephone: Fax:

Applicant=s Legal Interest in Properly: Ou: n-/ €R

Location of Property: Stleet Add

Nearest Cross Streets:

SiclrvellNunrber:

Property Description:

If part of a recorded plat, provide lot nunrbers and subdivisiort
(i.e.. Aacreage parcel"). provide metes and bounds description.

name. lf not part of a recorded plat
Attaclr separate sheets il rrecessary.

(Square (Acres):

Existing Zoning (please check):

c SFRD Sin-ele Farnih Residential District
c MFRD Multiple Fanrih'Residential District
c MHRD Mobile l-lome Park District
G NBD Nei-ehborhood Business District
G MBD Municipal Business District
G PUD Planned Unit Derelopnrent District

Regional Business District
Central Brrsirress District
Ceneral Industrial District
Light Industrial District
Comntrrnity Service District

G RBD
G CBD
G GID
G LID
G CSD

')



City of Lincoln Park
Application fbr Site Plan Revierv
Page 2 of3

Present Use of Property:

Proposed Use of Property:

PIease Corrplete the Following Chart:

Professionals Who Pre

A. Name:

Mailing Address:

Ernail Address:

Telephone:

B. Narne:

Prirnan' Desisn Responsibiliry:

Type of Development Number of Units Gross Floor Area Number of Employees
on Largest Shift

Detached Single Family

Attached Residential

Office

Commercial

Industrial

Otlrer CfrP ///t g /-t

Mailing Address:

Email Address:

Telephone:

C. Narne:

Fax: Primarv Design Responsibility:

Mailing Address:

Email Address:

Prinrarr Design Responsibilitl,:-[elephone:
Fax:

S.P.R. Application: Jull, 17.2006



City of Lincoln Park

Application for Site Plan Revieu'
Page 3 of3

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING:
l. Six (6) irrdividuall.v folded copies of the site plans, sealed by a registered architect, errgineer,

landscape architect or colnrlunitY plannel'.

2. A brief,rvritten description of the existing and proposed uses, inclLrdirrg but not limited to: hours
of operation. nurnber of ernployees on largest shift, nurnber of company vehicles, etc.

3. Proof of propeffr,ou'nership.

4. Revierv con.rn.lents or apploval received frorl countlz. state, or federal agencies that have
jurisdiction over the project. including but rrot limited to:

G Wayne County Drain Cornmission

G Michigan Deparlrnent of Natural Resources

G Michigan Deparlnrent of Transpoftation G Michigan Department of Environmental QLrality

PLEASE NOTE: The applicant or a designated representative MUST BE PRESENT at all scheduled revierv
meetings or the site plan rnay be tabled due to lack of representation.

Failure to provide trure and accurate infonnation on this application shall provide sufficient grounds to deny
approval of a site plan application or to revoke any permits granted subsequent to site plan approval.

APPLICANT=S EN DORSE },IENT :

All information contained herein is true and accurate to the best of my knorvledge. I acknorvledge that tlte
Plannin-e Conrrnissiorr rvill not revierv my application unless all infomation required in this application and the
Zoning Ordinance have been subnrifted. I further acknorvledge that the City and its ernployees shall not be

application
-(-

Signature olApplicant Date

Signature of Propertl, Ou'ner Authorizing this Application Date

G Wayne County Road Cornmissiorr

G Wayne Countl, Health Division

'')
f ''r'', 

,n
DateSignature of Applicant

TO BE COMPLE THE CITY

Date Subnritted:

Received By:

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

Approved: Denied: Date of Action:

O:\WPWORK\CLIENTS.I-L\Lincoln Park\Cs-06\spr application.doc

S.P.R. Application: July 17.2006

held liable for anyplairrs that rnay



Case No.@lf -por:7
Date Subrnitted

City of Lincoln P:rrk
APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE APPROVAL

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Applications for Special Use revieu, by the Planning Cornrnission rnust be

strbnritted to the City iii .sub.stcrtttially conrplete fornt at least thirly (30) days prior to the Plannin-u
Corrrrission's rneeting at rvhich the proposal rvill be considered. The application rnust be accorttpanied by
sir (6) inclividual folded copies of the site plan. plus the required revierv fbes. Regular rreetings of the
Planning Conrnrission are held on the first Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.nr. All meetings are held at the
Lincoln Park City l-lall. 1355 Southfield Road. Lincoln Park, Michigarr 48146. Phone nunrber (313) 386-
I 800: Fax (3 I 3) 386-2205.

Special Uses shall conrply rvith the standards in Section 1262.08 of the Zorrin-e Ordinarrce. Accordingly. a

public hearing shall be held by the Plannirrg Commission before a decision is nrade or1 any Special Use
request. Fufthernrore. a site plan shall be required. lvlrich shall be prepared in accordance r.vith Section
1294.01 of the Ordinarrce.

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT:

I (rve) tlre undersigned do respectfully request Special Use
inforrration to assist in tlre

t/,
,E,(

Applicant:

Mailing Address:

Revierv and provide the follorving

flt / 8/7c
Address:

Telephone

Proper11, Orvner(s) (if different from Applicant):

Mailins Address:

cs7

Telephone: Fax:

Applicant's Legal Interest in Properl v, / /e -4
Locntion of Property: S

Nearest Cross Streets:

Sid*ell Nunrber:

Propertl' Descri ption :

lf part ola recorded plat. provide lot nurlbers and subdivision narne. If not part of a recorded plat
(i.e.. "acreage parcel"). provide rnetes and bounds description. Attach separate sheets if necessary.

Propefir,Siz,e (SqLrare

Present Use o1' Property:

Address:

(Acres):

Proposed Use of Propeft1,:

E



Cin, of Linc'olu Pot'k
Special Use Appliccttion
Page 2 oJ 2

Existing Zonirrg (please check):

c SFRD Single Fanrily Residential District
G MFRD Multiple Family Residential District
c MHRD Mobile Horne Park District
c NBD Neiglrborhood Business District
G MBD Municipal Business District
G PUD Planned Unit Development District

Please Complete the Follorving Cham:

Regional Business District
Cerrtral Brrsirress District
Gerteral I rrdrrstlial District
Light Irrdustrial District
Conrmunity Service District

G RBD
G CBD
G GID
G LID
G CSD

Type of Development Number of Units Gross Floor Area
Number of Employees

on Largest Shift

Detached Sinele Family
Attached Residential

Office
Commercial
Industrial
Other

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING:

I . Six (6) individually folded copies of the site plan, sealed by a registered architect, engineer, landscape

architect or community planner.
2. Proof of property orvnership.
3. A brief rvritten description of the proposed use.

PLEASE NOTE: The applicant or a designated representative MUST BE PRESENT at all scheduled
revierv rrreetings or tlre site plarr rnay be tabled due to lack of represerttatiott.

APPLICANT'S ENDORSEMENT:

All information contained herein is tnre and accurate to the best of Iry knou,led-ee. I ackno'rvledge that the

Planning Conrnrissiorr rvill not revierv rny application unless all infornration required in this application and

the Zoning Ordinance have been subrnitted. I furlher acknorvled,qe that the City and its employees shall not be

a result of acceptance. processin-q. or approval of this aBplication.a
S i_snatu re -pplicant

Signature of Applicant Date

Si_enature of Property Orvner Authorizing this Application Date

To be contplered by Ciry:

Date Submitt"d, 3 lri I i?
Received ,r, W-

Zc,('fv)'"vtl N
1r1_Sa,Z'-.-*r-

Fee Paid: 
"3t$>'

Date of Public Hearing:

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION (RECOMMENDATION)

To Approve:_ To Deny:_ Date of Action

Reasons fbr Action Taken:

CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Approved:

Reasons for Action Taken

Denied Date of Action:

.luly, 2007

Date







 

 
 
 

 

 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 



 
 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 





 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 
 



 
 
 



  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 



 
 
 

 



 



 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



64184 IM ,KRAP NLOCNIL ,TEERTS TROF 9143
TNARUATSER OT NOITAVONER



64184 IM ,KRAP NLOCNIL ,TEERTS TROF 9143
TNARUATSER OT NOITAVONER





Architects International. Inc.
Architects Planners Engineers
17400 Wildemere
Detroit, MI 48221
(313)341-7930 r (313) 341-6944Fax

ARCHITECTS INTERNATIONAL

November 22,2017

Leah DuMouchel, Planner
CITY OF LINCOLN PARK
1355 Southfield Road
Lincoln Park, MI 48146

RE: RESTAURANTRENOVATION
3419 FORT STREET
LINCOLN PARK, MI
ARCHITECTS NTERNATIONAL JOB NO. 1750

Dear Ms. DuMouchel:

Please receive Planning Departrnent submittal for the above project with revisions per your latest
comments letter. We have addresses the items that have been "red lined".
l. Owner will provide proof of ownership under separate cover.
2. Detailed location map has been placed on survey by Pro-Tech Land Survey P.C.
3. Legal and common description have been placed on survey by Pro-Tech Land Survey P.C.
4. Architectural and surveyor's seals have been placed on drawings.
5. Proximity to adjacent driveways have been placed on site plan and survey.
6. Proximity to section corner has been placed on survey.
7. Setbacks have been placed on site plan and survey.
8. Topographical survey has been provided by Pro-Tech Land Survey P.C.
9. New exterior lighting has been shown on site plan, Sheet SP-I.
10. New masonry trash area detail has been shov*,n on site plan, Details l/SP-l & 2/SP-1.
I l Parking space dimensions have been shown on site plan, Sheet SP-I.
12. Lawns and landscaping have been shown on site plan, Sheet SP-1, following "Special Provisions

For Existing Site Section 1296.03. See shrub & deciduous tree planting details.
13. Landscaping information has been provided on site plan, Sheet SP-I.
14. There are presently no existing trees on the site.
15. Desigrrated fire lane has been shown on the site plan, Sheet SP-I.
16. New signage faces will be mounted into the existing sign frame. Sign will be done under

separate permit by sign co.
17. A proposed fence, per Section 1294.28 has been shown on site plan, Detail3/SP-1.
18. The tlrpe of exterior finish materials have been shown on elevations, Sheet SP-l.
19. Rooftop screening detail has been shown on site plan, Detail 5/SP-1.
20. Existing utilities have been shown on survey.
2 l. Grading and drainage has been shown on survey.
22. There will be no moving of soils, and no need for soil erosion studies.
23. Final grades have been shown on survey.

Sincerely,

4
1750 3419 Fortl.docx

TIONAL



CaseNo.

DateSubmitted

City of Lincoln Park

APPLICATION FOR SNE PI./IN REWEW
NOTICE TO APPLICAIYT: Applications for Site Plan Review by the Planning Commission must be
submitted to the City in substantially complete form at least thirty (30) days prior to the Planning
Commission's meeting at which the proposal will be mnsidered. The ap,plication must be accompanied by the
data specified in the Zoning Ordinance and Site Plan Review Guidelines, including fully dimensioned site
plans, plus the required review fees. Regular meetings of the Planning Commission are held on the second
Wednesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. All meetings are held at the Lincoln Park City Hall, 1355
Southfield Road, Lincoln Park, Michigan 48146. Phone number (313) 386-1800; Fax (313)386-2205.

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT:

I (we) the undersigrred, do hereby respectfully request Site Plan Review and provide the following infornntion

n

to assist in the review:

epprcant: fle l/r n k, q^€--
MuirruAdd**Jt7f de67T-ave /rn. co/q /ar< e/t,rz

t/

rY\2,.2

4tS) q(?b-*iq Fax:

Propely Owne(s) Name (if ttLei, t/,,, fiam€'Z
Mailing

ow^JEtz rr\ 6Hr:;? re fi.fpt)iy47\t €k trfl .pG ?/+Lo.N
i .u T o z+ c-!t t2AY * e,!, r a? E, 6 -( At'l &4 ,., r-

Loc*ionofProperty:StrestAddress: '3*11 lr-a?T tI . t-tttc:<sw}.t ?(, PVI 42,*b
Nearest Cross Streets: t-( O^4
Sidwell Number (Parcel ID# .- 1o Z- c) 'a-lble'aa I

PropertyDescription:
If part of a recorded plag provide lot numbers and suMMsion name. If not part of a recorded plat
(i.e., Aacreage parcel"), provide metes and bounds description. Attach separate sheets ifnecessary.

l?,o\ o?
At= 14MOtJ't

EC,o fl-D 11.

FT€. TR€ \,U

Existing Zoning (please check):

c SFRD SingleFamilyResidentialDistrict
c MFRD MultipleFamilyResidentialDstrict
G MHRD MobileHomeParkDistrict
G NBD NeighborhoodBusinessDistict
c MBD Municipal BusinessDisnict
G PUD PlannedUnitDevelopmentDistrict

G RBD Regional Business District
G CBD Central Business Dstict
G GID General Industrial District
c LID Lieht Industrial District
G CSD CommunityServiceDistrict

9D*z
Czt\-el\,/.rv Jrv., Fa- zi rl7 f\.ewl^|-.VPL, e'ar, f . E/E) w$t-- 

^P*t\t-ev3 : 45-oiL- cP,* tlt-5- -0ot irttD '*<-ati - c?> - t't b6 -or:i

PropertySize (Squarepg' 
.] t4U 9Q - FT' (acres;:

Email:

offi*t)',
Telephone:

-iD>- itt -



City of Lincoln Park
Application for Site Plan Review
Page? of4

Present Use of Property: Tfi€ I cl i up r u (' [5 PLe5A^,'7L\ UfteBM7.
TttE f-o$,t4g€. \:9e iP.A9 A B 6/}o-rY 

'ALJN

Proposed Use of Property:; 6 (*Ne L r*J i I H e:9 T13 Agrs t) U OTE

BuiLOrA/tc t^jTo ,N enARY*CI\rf Rtr5f(+utqArf.

Please Complete the Following Chart:

Type of Development

Detached SingleFamily

Attached Residential

Numberof Units Gross Floor Area Numberof Employees
an Lqroesf Shiff

Office

Commercial qqfr z*l t- ?
Industrial

Other

Professionals Who Prepared Plans:

A. Name: P Lotr I \-.E c-T, i v T tRNf+fr 0.M frt* 1t'rL

Mailing

DE-( llc rrr M t 4gLZt
. 1'l {tc w i c>E Mr5 RE

EmailAddress: a'{'c)tttoc-tg - tn1-@ q-+t-- a.e-t
Telephorrc:)1/a *t ':l 93qax:-- 

--Primary 
Design Responsibility:. ALL DBA\rlt p6b

B. Nanre: P {b-- fe-{ LIl/ D D ..r&o'eY ?L
t/ Mailing /5'7t CletrA1t aft /inta[r, farx 't1<tiflt

Address:_
to n 

^'(h 
a n Gainc z. / Q 4 7 $ctfue'' 9r{r#l

\-/ Address:

r"l"phon",9Xb- 3fi1'v1ll:- - PrimaryDesignResponsibility: .J u B-r.) -= Y

Mailing

Email Address:

Desigt Responsibility:.Telephone: __ Fr

S.P.R. Application: July 17, 2006



City of Lincoln Park
Application for Site Plan Review
Page 3 of4

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING:
1. Eight (8) individually folded copies of the site plans, sealed by a registered architect

engineer, landscape architect or community planner as well as ONE ( I ) Elecfoni c copy .

2. A briefwritEn descriptionofthe existing and proposed uses, including but not limited to:
hours of operatiorL number of employees on largest shift, number of company vehicles, etc.

3. Proofofpropertyownership.

4. Review comments or approval received from county, state, or federal agencies that
have jurisdiction over the project, including but not limited to:

G Wayne CountyRoad Commission

G Wayne County Health Division

G Wayne County Drain Commission

G Michigan Departrnent of Natural Resources

G Michigan Department of Transportation G Michigan Departrnent of Environmental auafity

PLEASE NOTE: The applicant or a designated representative MUST BE PRESENT at all scheduled review
meetinp or the site plan may be tabled due to lack of representation.

Failure to provide true and accurate information on this application shall provide sufficient grounds to deny
approval ofa site plan application or to revoke any permits granted subsequent to site plan approval.

APPLICANT' S ENDORSEMENT:

AII information contained herein is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I acknowledge that the
Planning Commission will not review my application unless all information required in this application and the
Zonrng Ordinance have been submitted. I further acknowledge that the City and its employees shall not be
held liablg for any glairqp that may arise as a result ofacceptance, processing or approval ofthis site plan
appli

/

V

Authorizing this Application

ir o/z
Date

tt, .
Date i ,

,t /r./z}
Date

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CITY CaseNo.

Date Submitted: Fee Paid:

By: Date ofP

R}TIWTNG COMMISSION ACTION

Appror"'d:- Denied: Date ofAction:

S.P.R. Application: August 2017



+;1 
ANcir(, First American Title fnsurance Compan.l'

100 Bloomfield Hills Parkway, Suite 195 .Bloomfield Hills. Ml 48304

Oflice Phone : (24 8) g U 1 02 Office F ox : ( 866) 55/4. 1 07 I

B uvct's Final Scttlemcn t Statcmen t

Property Addross: 341 g and Vacant Fort Street,
Lincoln Parft, M148146

File No: 778258
Officer: PatFlinchum/KE
Settlement Oate: 0610112017

Disbursement Oate: 0610112017

Print Date: 0512412017.5:33 PM

Buyer:
Address:
Saller:
Address:

Meivin Gamez
1578 Detroit Avenue, Lincoln Park, Ml 48146
The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
515 Vanessa Court, Saline, Ml 48176

Charge Description Buyer Charqe Buyer Credit

Consideration:
TotEl Consrde?llo1 77.000 00

Deposits in Escrow:
Receiol No. 312175340 qt OS|02J2O17 by Melvin Gamez/Ana Gamez 20.o00.o0

Prorations:
Summer Tax OAIOI 117 lo 07 l9ll 17 @52.347.O3Nr 192.91

VvinterTax 06/01/17 to 1?o1t17 @56!8.66/yr 325.?2

TitlelEscrow Chargos to:
Recordino Procesinq Fee - Escrow to FirstAmerican Tille lnsurance Company 35.00
ETi-eme; ny 350 00
Deed Re@rdina to Wayne Counv Reqjsier ol Deeds 30.00
Tax Certilication to wayne Couity Treasurer 5.00

Cash (X From) ( To) Buyer 57.938.1 3

Toials 7.938. 1 3 77.938.13

lnitials: Paga 1 of 1



__l

Fitst Amedcan Title fns utance Company

100 Bloomfield HilJs Parkway, Suitc 195'Bloomfleld Hills, ['1148304

Office Phone (248)540-1 1O2 Affice F ax:(866) 55o- 1 o79

S e llefs Final Se t tleme n t S tate m e n t

Proporty Address: 341 I and Vacant Fort Street,
Lincoln Park. Ml 48146

File No: 778258

Officer: Pal Flinchum/KE
Settlement Date: 0610112017

Disbursement Date: 0010112017

Print Da!e: 05/3112017,8:14 AM

Buyer:
Addrgss:
Sollor:
Address:

Melvin Gamez
1578 Detroit Avenue, Lincoln Park, MI 48146

The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
515 Vanessa Cou(, Saline, MI 48176

77,51413

SELLER(s):

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust

Pago 1 of 1

Charqe Dgscription Seller Charqe Saller Crodit

77 000 {]0

ShtA. Tty ngntrlT t^ 121n1117 6<RAR A tur

)n to Frierlman Brokeraoe Grouo a A?o oo

TitlalE<rraw (:h.rnae t^.
ld FFe to Firsl AmpriEn Title lnsrlrane ComDanv 350 00

,nerq PaAmiL)m lo Firql AmAriaan TillF lnslran@ Comoanv 645 65
]I 150 no

r { ransler Tax lo vvavne tlountv Reorster ol Deeds \77
L;ountv IrEnsler lax AA 70

i Hald \ Iater Fssow

70.790.28

Tota ls

,nrrr"r.'€aG
,7-



ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND AGREEMENT

File Number:
Date:
Propefi Address:

778258

June 01, 2017

3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Uncoln Park, MI 48146

The undersigned Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree as follows:

That information regarding any outstanding municipal charges including but not limited to water,
demolition, weed cutting, sidewalk repair, tap in fees ('Municipal Charges") is not readily available to
First American Title Insurance Company

That First American Title Insurance Company is not responsible for payment of any Municipal
Charges which are not existing liens recorded ln the Office of the Register of Deeds Wayne County
or which do not appear on the tax rolls for the property described in the above referenced
commitment.

That it is the responsibility of the Seller and Buyer to obtain bills for, and pay, any outstanding
Municipal Charges in accordance with the purchase agreement between Seller and Buyer,

That First American Title Insurance Company is not responsible for any difference between any
amount collected at closing and the actual amount of any Municipal Charges and that any shortage
in funds collected and paid at closing is the sole responsibility of Seller and Buyer.

Seller: Buyer:

Melvin Gamez
John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
dated March 22,2013

1.

2.

3.

4.

bhn A. Ambrose, Trustee

l.r. First American Title Insurance Company
File No: 778258

<i4



ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND AGREEMENT

File Number:
Date:
Property Address:

778258

June 01, 2017

3419 and Vacant Foft Street, Lincoln Park, MI 48746

The undersigned Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree as follows:

1. That information regarding any outstanding municipal charges including but not limited to water,
demolition, weed cutting, sidewalk repair, tap in fees ('Municipal Charges") is not readily avaiiable to
First American Title Insurance Company

2. That First American Title fnsurance Company is not responsible for payment of any Municipal
Charges which are not existing liens recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds Wayne County
or which do not appear on the tax rolls for the property described in the above referenced
commitment.

3. That it ls the responsibility of the Seller and Buyer to obtain bills for, and pay, any outstanding
Municipal Charges in accordance with the purchase agreement between Seller and Buyer.

4. That First American Title Insurance Company is not responsible for any difference between any
amount collected at closing and the actual amount of any Municipal Charges and that any shortage
in funds collected and paid at closing is the sole responsibility of Seller and Buyer.

Seller: Buyer:

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Livlng Trust
dated March 22,2013

John A. Ambrose, Trustee

-1 AII ItA,

ao..- 4
1. First American Title Insurance Company

File No: 778258



. prsclosuRE ANp ACKN9WLEDGMENT

Date: June 01,2017

Property Address: 3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Lincoln Park, MI 48146

By signing this statement the undersigned acknowledge the lollowing:

1. That all closing documents prepared by First American lltle Insurance Company are prepared at the direction
and request of all parties to the transaction, their real estate agent(s)/broker(s) or attorney(s).

2, That First American Tifle fnsurance Company is not acting as my agent, attorney, representative or
fiduciary, at this real estate closing.

3, That First American lltle Insurance Company's employee who has attended this closing represents only First
American lltle Insurance Company,

4. That First American J'itle Insurance Company's employee who has identified certain documents to me as he/she
has presented them to me for signing, but has not given me legal advice as to the meaning or effect of
the documents. I understand that any of his/her statements about the documents are not legal advice to me.
If I have an attorney, that attorney is my only attorney in this transaction.

5. That I have either read all of the closing documents or am responsible for my own failure to have read them. I
understand that First American Title Insurance Company is not responsible for explaining to me the
effect of the documents I have signed.

6. That the title poliry, when issued, will contain all of the exceptions noted on the commitment, unless such
exceptions are removed to the satisfaction of First American lltle Insurance Company at closing.

7. That I have read this statement and understand it.

Seller(s): Buyer(s) I Borrower(s):

Melvin Gamez
John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
dated March 22,2013

First American Title Insurance Company
File No: 778258



2.

4.

q

DISCLOSURE AND ACKNOWLEDGM ENT

Date: June 01, 2017

Propefi Address: 3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Lincoln Park, MI 48146

By signing this statement the undersigned acknowledge the following:

1. That alt closing documents prepared by First American Title Insurance Company are prepared at the direction
and request of all parties to the transaction, their real estate agent(s)/broker(s) or attorney(s).

That First American Title Insurance Company is not acting as my agent, attorney, representative or
fiduciary, at this real estate closing.

3. That First American Title Insurance Company's employee who has attended this closing represents only First
American Title Insurance Company

That First American Title Insurance Company's employee who has identified certain documents to me as he/she
has presented them to me for signing, but has not given me legal advice as to the meaning or effect of
the documents. I understand that any of his/her statements about the documents are not legal advice to me.
if I have an attorney, that attorney is my only attorney in this transaction.

That I have either read all of the closing documents or am responslble for my own failure to have read them. I
understand that First American Title Insurance Company is not responsible for explaining to me the
effect of the documents I have signed.

6. That the title poliry, when issued, will contain all of the exceptions noted on the commitment, unless such
exceptions are removed to the satisfaction of First American Title Insurance Company at closing.

7, That I have read this statement and understand it.

Seller(s):

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
dated March 22,2413

John A. Ambrose. Trustee

\\-
AItEA, 'o

].r. First American Title Insurance Company
File No; 778258



File Number:
Date:

TAX PRORATION AGREEMENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

778258
June 01, 2017

Reference: Gamez / Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
Property Address: 3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Lincoln Park, MI 48146

Seller and Purchaser Acknowledge and Agree as Follows:
1. That the pafties hereto have settled the proration of taxes and assessments by the method reflected on the

settlement statements signed at the closing. That in the event it is subsequently discovered that these are
additional taxes or assessments, which constitute a lien at the time of closing Seller and Purchaser agree that such
additional taxes or assessments shall be prorated by the method reflected in the settlement statement signed at
closing. Any prior agreement between parties shall be deemed as modified hereby.

2. The Purchaser acknowledges and agrees:
a) that all real estate taxes billed on or after this date are the sole responsibility of the Purchaser.
b) that the Purchaser shall make any necessary arrangements to obtain all future tax bills. Purchaser

acknowledges it is not the responsibility of First American Tltle Insurance Company to notify any Treasurer of
change in ownership,

3. The Seller acknowledges and agrees:
a) that the Seller represents and warrants to the Purchaser and First American Tltle Insurance Company and its

underwriter that all outstanding taxes and assessments including but not limited to all sewer and water charges.
road paving, maintenance charges, trash collection charges, weed charges, association dues, penalties, and
administration fees have been paid in full by the Seller.

or
b) that, if not previously paid by the Seller, all outstanding taxes and assessments including but not limited to all

above said items shall be deducted from the Sellers proceeds as reflected on the settlement statement.
c) that the Seller has not received any notification of any future assessments and has no knowledge of any

improvement or maintenance undeftaken by any municipality or association,
d) that the Seller will immediately pay any taxes and assessments including but not limited to the above said items

(Paragraph 3a) which may subsequently be discovered to have been a lien on the property or incurred prior to
the date of closing.

4. Seller and Purchaser acknowledge and agree:
a) That any settlement to the proration of taxes or assessments is a rnatter entirely between the Seller and

Purchaser, and that neither the Seller nor the Purchaser is relying on advice from First American "llUe Insurance
Company in determining method of statement.

b) That First American lltle Insurance Company is relying on the agreement of the Seller and Purchaser as
reflected in the settlement statements in order to disburse funds.

c) That, except for the failure of First American Tltle Insurance Company to properly account for the funds
provided to it, Seller and Purchaser jointly and severally agree to indemnify First American Title Insurance
Company for any loss or damage, including but not limited to reasonable attorney fees incurred as a result of
failure to comply with this agreement.

d) That Seller and Purchaser acknowledge First American -Irtle Insurance Company and its underwriter are relying
on the representations made herein for the purpose of closing the real estate transaction referenced herein and
are disbursing funds based on upon such reliance.

First American Title Insurance Company
File No: 778258



Seller(s):

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the Colleen
R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust dated March 22,
2013

Purchaser(s):

Melvin Gamez

A. Ambrose, Trustee

'.r. First American Title Insurance Company
File No: 778258

AIti.R, '('

,/Lz



Seller(s):

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the Colleen
R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust dated March 22,
2013

John A. Ambrose, Trustee

AIll.A, ' a.' .t

//Z

z. First American Title Insurance Company
File No: 778258



WARRANTY DEED

Drafted By:
lohn A. Ambrose, Sucessor Trustee
The Colleen R, Galeski Revocable
Living Trust
515 Vanessa Court
Saline, MI 48176

Return To:
Melvin Gamez
1578 Detroit Avenue
Lincoln Park, MI 48146

Co r porate(platted/condorninium)

Send Tax Bills To:
Melvin Gamez
1578 Detroit Avenue
Lincoln Park, MI 48146

Recording Fee: $30.00
File Number: 778258

State Transfer Tax:
County Transfer Tax:

$577.50 Tax Parcel No,: 45-012-08-1765-001,

$84.70 45-012-08-1766-001

Know All Percons by These Presents: That John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the Colleen R. Galeski
Revocabte Living Trust dated March 24 2013
whose address is 515 Vanessa Court, Saline, Ml 48176

Convey(s) and Warrant(s) to Melvin Gamez, a single man
whose address is 1578 Detroit Avenue, Lincoln Park, MI 48146

the following described premises situated in the CiW of Lincoln Park, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, to wit:

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A)

More commonly known as: 3419 and Vacant Fort Street Lincoln Park, MI 48L46
For the full consideration of: seventy seven thousand Dollars ($77,000,00)

Subject To:

Existing building and use restrictions, easements of record, and zoning ordinances, if any.

First American Title Insurance Company



I

(Aftached to and becoming a paft of Warranty Deed dated: June O7, 2O77 between John A. Ambrosq Successor
Trustee of the Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust dated March 22, 2013, as Seller(s) and tulelin Gamez, a single
man/ as Purchaser(s).)

Dated this June 01, 2017,

Seller(s):

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
dated March 22,2013

State of Michioan
counry or i;) AYNr

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me
this June 01,2017 by John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee
of the Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust dated
March 22, 2013.

'9Qn|^ A
Notary PubJic: V) LL-LL
Notary County/State: / w*YNe. qvNrf ) vrltca+ tGttM
County Acting In: u{ftyN€ CaYrn
Commission Expires: g -o'1 ^ 20l?



(Attached to and becoming a part of lAarranty Deed dated: -lune O7, 2O77 between lohn A. Ambrose, Successor
Trustee of the Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust dated March 22, 2013, as Seller(s) and Melvin Gamez, a single
man, as Purchase(s).)

EXHIBIT A

Land situated in the City of Lincoln Park, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, described as follows:

Parcel 1

Lot 1765, EXCEPT the Westerly 17.02 feet, EMMON'S ORCHARD SUBDIVISION NO. 2, acmrding to the recorded plat
thereof, as recorded in Liber 41 of Plats, Page 88, Wayne County Records.

Parcel 2
Lots 1766, 1767, 1768, EXCEPT Fort Street as widened, EMMON'S ORCHARD SUBDIVISION NO. 2, according to the
recorded plat thereof, as recorded in Liber 41 of Plats, Page BB, Wayne County Records,

Tax Parcel N umber: 45 -0 12-08- 1 765-00 1, 45-Ot2-08- 1766-00 1



14ich;gan Departmeni of TreasJry

2766 (Rov. 01 -16)

Property Transfer Affi davit

L-4260

This form is issued under authority of P.A. 415 of 1994. Filing i5 mandatory.

This form must be filed whenever real estate or some types of personal property are transferred (even if you are not recording a deed). The Affidavit
must be filed by the new owner with the assessor for the city or township where the property is located within 45 days of the
transfer, The information on this Form is NOT CONFIDENTIAL.

1, Skeet Address of Property
3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Lincoln Park, MI

1

Certain types of transfers are exempt from uncapping. If you believe this transfer is exempt, indicate belorv the type of exemption you are claiming,
If you claim an exemption, your assessor may request more information to support your claim.

fl Transfer from one spouse to the other spouse

l_l Cnange in ownership solely to exclude or include a spouse

I-l Transfer betlveen certain family members '(see page 2)

i--l Transfer of that portion of a property subject to a life lease or life estate (until the liFe lease or life estate expires)

f_l Transfer to effect the foreclosure or forfeiture of real property

f_l Transfer by redemption from a tax sale

f-l Transfer into a trust where the settlor or the settlor's spouse conveys property to the trust and is also the sole beneflciary of the trust

f_l Transfer resulting from a court order unless the order specifies a monetary payment

f Transfer creating or ending a joint tenancy if at least one person is an original o|ner of the prop€rty (or his/her spouse)

l-_l transfer to establish or release a security interest (collateral)

f-l Transfer of real estate through normal public trading of stocks

fl Transfer between entities under common control or among members of an af'filiated group

I-l lransfer resultinq From transactions that qualifo as a tax-Free reorganization

f-l Transfer of qualified agricultural property when the property remains qualified agricultural property and affidavit has been filed.

f_l Transfer of qualified forest property when the properly remains qualified forest property and affidavit has been filed.

I Transfer of land witlr qualified conservation easement (land only - not improvements)

f_l other, specify:

Date of Transfer (or land conkact signed)
June 01, 2017

Purchase Price oF Real Estate4. Location of Real Estate (Check appropriate field and enter name in the space below.)

f! c,ty
City of Lincoln Park

The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
7. Property Identification Number (PIN). If you don't have a PIN, attach legal description.

IIIL This number ranges from 10 to 25 digits. It usually includes hyphens and sometimes
includes letters. It is on the property tax bill and on the assessment notice.

4 5-01 2-08- 1765-001, 45-0 1 2-08-1766-001

B. Buye/s (Transferee) Name and Mailing Address

Melvin Gamez
1578 Detroit Avenue,
Lincoln Park, MI 48146

9. Buyer's (Transferee) Telephone Number

Items 10 - 15 are optional, However, by completing them you may avoid further correspondence.
10. Type ofTransfer, Transfers include deeds, land contracts, transfers involving trusts or wills, certain long-term jeases and interest in a business.

See page 2 for list,

fl uanO Contract fl Otne. (specify)

11. Was property purchased from a flnancial institution?

[ves E*o
12, Is the transfer between related persons?

I ves E rvo

13. Amount of Down Payment

74. lf you financed the purchase, did you pay market rate of interest?

[v"' Iruo
15. Amount Financed (Eorrowed)

EXEMPTIONS

Daytrme Phone Nurnber

CERIIFICATION
the nfarmation above ls

Printed Name

Srgnature

to the best of

Narne and title, s!qner rs E-ma1l Address

2, County
Wayne

T Townsnip l-l virrage

DeedLease EI]

Date
0610u2017



2766, Page 2

Instructions:
This form must be fjled when there is a transfer of real property or one of the following types of personal property:

. Buildings on leased land.

. Leasehoid improvements as defined in MCL Section 211.8 (h).

. Leasehold estates as defined in MCL Section 211.8 (i) and (i).

Transfer of ownership means the conveyance of title to or a present interest in property, including the beneficial use of the
property. For complete descriptions for qualifying transfers, please refer to MCL Section 2tL.27a(6)(a-j).

Excerpts from Michigan Compiled Laws (MCL), Chapter 211
*Section 2fl,27a(7)(t): Beginning December 3L,70L4, a transfer of resldential real property if the transferee is the
transferor's or the transferor's spouse mother, father, brother, sister, son, daughter, adopted son, adopted daughter,
grandson, or granddaughter and the residential real property is not used for any commerciai purpose following the
conveyance. Upon request by the department of treasury or the assessor, the transferee shall furnish proof within 30 days
that the transferee meets the requirements of this subparagraph. If a transferee fails to comply with a request by the
department or treasury or assessoi under this subparagraph, the transferee is subject to a fine of $200.00.

Section 2Lt.27a(1O): "...The buyer, grantee, or other transferee of the property shall notify the appropriate assessing
office in the local unit of government in which the property is located of the transfer of ownership of the property within 45
days of the transfer of ownership, on a form prexribed by the state tax commission that states the parties of the transfer,
the date ofthe transfer, the actual consideration for the transfer, and the property's parcel identification number or legal
description,"

Section 211,27(5)z "Except as othenryise provided in Subsection (5), the purchase price paid in a transfer of property is not
thepresumptivetruecashvalueofthepropertytransferred. Indetermlningthetruecashvalueoftransferredproperty,an
assessing officer shall assess that property using the same valuation method used to value all other property using the same
valuation method used to value all other property of that same classiflcation in the assessing jurisdiction.'

Penalties:
Section 2LL.27b(l\: "lf the buyer. grantee, or other transferee in the immediately preceding transfer of ownership of property
does not notify the appropriate assessing offlce as required by section 27aOA), the property's taxable value shall be adjusted
under section 27a(3) and ail of the following shall be levied:
(a) Any additional taxes that would have been levied if the transfer of ownership had been recorded as required under this
act from the date of transfer.
(b) Interest and penalty from the date the tax would have been originally levied.

(c) For property classified under section 34c as either industrial real property or commercial real property, a penalty in the
following amount:
(i) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (ii), if the sale price of the property transferred is $100,000,000.00 or less,

$20.00 per day for each separate failure beginning after the 45 days have elapsed, up to a maximum of $1,000.00.
(ii) If the sale price of the properly transferred is more than $100,000,000.00, 320,000.00 afterthe 45 days have elapsed.

(d) For real property other than real proper$ classified under section 34c as industrial real property or commercial real
property, a penalty of $5.00 per day for each separate failure beginning after the 45 days have elapsed, up to a maximum of
$200.00.



PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT ACKNOWLEDGMENT

File Number:
Date:
Reference:
Property Address:

778258

June Ot, 2017
Melvin Gamez / The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Lincoln Park, MI 48146

I/We, the undersigned Purchaser, Grantee or Transferee, have been advised that under Act 415, P.A. of 1994, Form L-

4260 2766 (Rev. 01/09) Property Transfer Affidavit must be completed and received by the iocal assessor within
45 days of the date of transfer.

IlWe further understand that the failure to file is punishable by penalty, if the sale price of the property transferred
is $100,000,000.00 or less, $20.00 per day for each separate failure beginning after the 45 days have elapsed, up to a

maximum of $1,000.00. (ii) If the sale price of the property transferred is more than $100,000,000.00, $20,000.00
after the 45 days have elapsed. (d) For real properLy other than real property classified under section 34c as industrial
real property or commercial real property, a penalty of $5.00 per day for each separate failure beginning after the 45
days have elapsed, up to a maximum of $200.00.

I/We have received from First American Title Insurance Cornpany on June OL,2Ol7, a Propefi Transfer
Affidavit, Form L-4260 2766 (Rev. 01i09), and accept responsibility for filing this form with our city/township
assessor. I/We agree to hold First American Title Insurance Company harmless frorn any further liability andlor
responsibility regarding this form,

I/We have requested that First American Title Insurance Company distribute this form by regular mait to the
city/township assessor, and hold the title company harmless from any further liability andior responsibility
regarding this form.

That the Buyer(s) are unable to complete the Property Transfer Affidavit at this time and will undertake to
distribute the form themselves; or have chosen to distribute the form themselves to the local tax collecting
unit,

,.9 
1_^\tFA/d,_,

First American Title Insurance Company

tr



AFFIDAVIT AND INDEMNITY

This Affidavit is being executed for the benefit First American -Iltle Insurance Company, their successors andlor assigns
(collectively, "the Company") with respect to properly located in Wayne County, State of Michigan, more pafticularly
described in title commitment 778258.

Affiant shall initial and complete the appropriate section or indicate that the section is not applicable.

Sale of Interest CNONE. unless completed)

Affiant entered into a written agreement with Friedman Brokerage Group the ("Broker") as defined in the Commercial
Real Estate Eroker's Lien Act, (Michigan Public Act 201 of 2010) for the purpose of selling, leasing or otherwise conveying
an interest in the property, Broker is entitled to compensation pursuant to the agreement in the amount of $4,620.00.

Acguisition of Interest (NONE, unless comoleted)

Affiant entered into a written agreement with the ("Broker") as defined in the Commercial
Real Estate Eroker's Lien Act, (Michigan Public Act 201 of 2010) for the purpose of acquiring an ownership interest in the
property, including but not lirnited to a leasehold interest in the proper'ry and/or improvements located thereon. Eroker is

entitled to compensation pursuant to the agreement in the amount of _.

General Disclosure (NONE. unless comp!ete_d)

Affiant has neither entered into a written agreement with, nor is Afflant aware of any individual who has entered into a
written agreement with any "Broker" as defined in the Commercial Real Estate Broker's Lien Act, (Michigan Public Act 201
of 2010), for the purpose of selling, leasing or othenvise conveying an interest in the property,

The Affiant acknowledges that the Company is relying on the representations contained in this Affidavit in issuing a title
poliry or policies of tltle insurance covering the propefi, and that the Company would not issue such policy or policies
without exception to Broker's right to lien unless these representations were made. In consideration of the Company's
issuance of such poliry, or policies of title insurance, Affiant agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Company
against all loss, damage or Iiability, including liabiliW for reasonabie attorney's fees incurred Condition of its poliry or
policies resulting from the recording, enforcement or altempted enforcement of any commercial broker's lien recorded
pursuant to the Cornmercial Real Estate Broker's Lien Act, (Michigan Public Act 201 of 2010).

Affiant:

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
dated March 22,2013

Subscribed and sworn to before me this First day of June, 2017,

A. Ambrose, Trustee

N9I,; A M Notary Public

File No. 778258



AFFIDAVIT AND INDEM NITY

This Affidavit is being executed for the benefit First Arnerican Title Insurance Company, their successors and/or assigns
(collectiveiy, "the Company") with respect to property located in Wayne County, State of Michigan, more particularly
described in title commitment 778258.

Affiant states as follows:

Affiant shall initial and complete the appropriate section or indicate that the section is not applicable,

Sale of Interest (NONE,-unless comoleted)

Acquisition of fnterest (NONE, unless completed)

Affiant entered into a written agreement with the ("Broker") as defined in the Commercial
Real Estate Broker's Lien Act, (Michigan Public Act 20L of 2010) for the purpose of acquiring an ownership interest in the
property, including but not limited to a leasehold interest in the property and/or improvements located thereon. Broker is
entitled to compensation pursuant to the agreement in the amount of _

Gene ral Di sclosu re ( N O N E, u nl es.s cognpl eted)

Alfiant has neither entered into a written agreement with, nor is Affiant aware of any individual who has entered lnto a
written agreement with any "Broker" as defined in the Commercial Real Estate Broker's Lien Act, (Michigan Public Act 201
of 2010), for the purpose of selling, leasing or otherwise conveying an interest in the propefi.

The Affiant acknowledges that the Company is relying on the representations contained in this Affldavit in issuing a title
policy or policies of title insurance covering the property, and that the Company would not issue such poliry or policies
without exception to Broker's right to lien unless these representations were made. In consideration of the Company's
issuance of such policy, or policies of title insLrrance, Affiant agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Company
against all loss, damage or liability, including liability for reasonable attorney's fees incurred Condition of its policy or
policies resulting from the recording, enforcement or attempted enforcement of any commercial broker's lien recorded
pursuant to the Commercial Real Estate Broker's Lien Act, (Michigan Public Act 201 of 2010).

Date: 6-/-/7

First day of June, 2017.

Notary Public

PAUL D. FELDMAN-
NotaryPubtic, Stale ol Micfrloan
.- ^ County ot Oaktsnd

rqlil,fi'rlgf,'ruX''W'-Lb'y'

File No, 778258

Subserf6-d and sworn to before me this

C1.-zz, /A/,4,*-



owN E R'S, A FFr DAVIT / E STO p p E L C E RTI FI CATE / CO M P LIAN C_E AG RE E M E NT- SALE

File Number: 778258
Date: June O1, 2O17 Forwarding Address:
Reference: Melvin Gamez /The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living 515 Vanessa Court

Trust
Property 3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Lincoln Park, MI 48146 Saline, Ml 44L76
Address:

(To be executed by all parties shown as vested owners/borrowers in the commitment for title insurance.)

Affrant makes the representations contained herein to induce the purchaser and/or lender to consummate the transaction

referenced in commitment, to obtain the proceeds of the sale or loan, and to induce First American Tltle Insurance Company
("First American") to issue a policy(s) of title insurance insuring title to the land, Afflant agrees that in the event it is determined
that there are unpaid charges which were due and payable prior to and including the date of closing, which are the responsibility
of Affiant, that the Afflant shall pay any and all amounts so charged and shall provide proof of payment of same to First
American. Afflant also agrees and covenants, if requested by First American, to fully cooperate and adjust for clerical errors in any

closing documents, including but not limited to, repayment of any overpayments and executing duplicate closing documents,

The undersigned, being first duty sworn on oath, deposes, states and warrants as follows:

1. That Affiant is the owner or is an authorized representative of the owner of ceftain premises described in

Commitment No. 778258 or which is described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Property"), and Affiant has

not filed, nor is subject to any bankruptry, receivership, or insolvency proceedings.

2. That the AFfiant is ln the possession of the Property and there are no other parties in possession or claiming
rights of possession; (NONE, unless noted)

3. That Affianl has no knowledge of any unrecorded conveyances, water, mineral, gas or oil rights, unrecorded
easements or claims of easements, replatting, boundary line disputes or claims of such grants or rights
relative thereto; (NONE, unless noted)

4. That the use of the Property is in compliance with all terms, conditions, covenants and/or restrictions
affecting the Property created in a plat of the Properly or in any other document, recorded or unrecorded,
and there are currently no violations of any terms, conditions, covenants and/or restrictions affecting the
properfy; (NONE, unless noted)

5. a. That the survey of the Property provided by Affiant to First American correctly represents all matters
certified to by the surveyors and that there have been no improvements added or alterations made on

the Property from the date of survey to the present and there are no encroachments onto the property or
encroachmenls over building or setback lines, easements or property lines not disclosed by the survey;
(NONE, unless noted)

OR

.'r. First American Title Insurance Company File No: 778258



OWN ER'S AFFIDAVIT/ ESTOPPE L CE RTIFICATE /COM PLIANCE AGREEM ENT-continued

That if no survey was provided to First American, Affiant warrants as follows:
a. There has not been any construction on the land or buildings, additions or improvements added to

the land in the past years;

b, Affiant is not aware nor has been informed by any person that any improvement on the land
including boundary walls, and fences encroach onto any easement, bordering set-back iine or
property which is not part of the land identified herein; (NONE unless noted):

c. The owner is not aware nor has been informed by any person that any improvement on neighboring
land including boundary walls and fences encroach onto the land which is not part of the land
identified herein; (NONE, unless noted)

That there has been no activity involving extraction of minerals, oil or gas, involving the surface of the
Property, or subsurface of the Property, nor is Affiant aware of any intent to conduct any such activity on or
under the property or any adjacent property; (NONE, unless noted)

That there are no proceedings instituted or undertaken by anyone which will result in a lien or special
assessment upon the premises. There are no delinquent taxes, special assessments, water bills, sewer bills
and assessments, weed cutting bills, board-up fees, tap-in fees, utility bills, or Homeowner's Association fees
covering subject property; (NONE, unless noted)

8. That there have
90 days; (NONE,

been no improvements made nor labor or materials furnished to the premises within the last
unless noted)

9. That Affiant has no knowledge of any other matters affecting the title including but not limited to: mortgages,
liens, land contracts, options or other encumbrances other than those which are being paid from the sale
proceeds. (NONE, unless noted)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this First day of June, Vested Owner(s):
2017.

u;LtL af,'+R
-Notary County/State : I r.$ *YP€ cl,vNTT t t'w1tct+ 
'6/?/''t

CountYActing In: t/\r*1,N€ c'ou^/fy
Commission Expires: I -o\f -ZOl1

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust
dated March 22,2013

First American Title Insurance Company F,le No: 778?58

\ \! t, A / /,



OWN ER'S AFFIDAVIT/ ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE / COM PUANCE AG RE EM ENT-conti nued

(To Be executed by the Buyer/Borrower)

The undersigned makes the representations contained herein to induce First American Title Insurance Company ("First American")
to issue a policy(s) of title insurance insuring title to the land described in Commitment No. 778258 and to obtain the proceeds of
the mortgage loan, if any. The undersigned agrees and covenants, if requested by First American, to fully cooperate and adjust
for clerical errors in any closing documents. The undersigned further agrees that in the event it is determined there are unpald
charges which were due and payable prior to and including the date of closing, and which are the responsibility of the
undersigned, that the undersigned shall pay any and all amounts so charged and shall provide proof of payment of same to First
American.

The undersigned acknowledges that Incident to the closing of the mortgage, if any, upon the lands, the mortgagee caused the full
sum of $0.00 the amount secured thereby, to be paid to the undersigned for the benefit of and by the direction of the
undersigned, The undersigned does hereby so agree and covenant in order to assure that the loan documentation, if any,
executed this date will conform in the market place in the instance of transfer, sale, or conveyance by Lender of its interest in and
to said loan documentation,

The undersigned further certify that they are 1B years of age or older.

and sworn to before me this First day of June,

Notary Public:
Notary County/State: /
County Acting In:
Commission Expires: PAUL D. FELDMAN

NotaryPubllc, State ol Mldtlgan
'County ot Oakland

My Commlsslon Expire-s Jqt,$
lfl $E Coufiy ol

Subscribed

.rs1 ^t'F4/c .o First American Title Insurance Company File No: 778258



Firct Amerian Tiile fnsurance Company
1a0 Bloomfield Hills Parkway, Suite 195 8loomfield Hills, MI48304

(248)540-4102 Fax - (866)550'1079

To:

RC:

Seller:

First American TiUe IDsurance Company
Pat Flinchum, €scrow Officer
3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Lincoln Parlq MI z18r.46

The Colleen R- Galeskl Revocable Living Trust
('Property")

)
Flle No.: 778258 (PF)
Date: I'lay 3L,2Ol7

Givc form to
requestor. Do not
send lo the IRS.

=
!=
-o6:.:U
o-

63
c2
o.

INFORMATION FORM - For IRS 1O99-S For Real Estate Tran$ctions
Name (as sholul on your income lax retum)

R, G/HfsKl &t. 2d3
narne/disregarded entty narne, if different frdn above

Check appropriate box: 0 lndivldual i Sole proprietor E Corporation (exempt rrom 1099-5 reporling) E Partnership.Ef Trusuestate
EuimneoliaUlitycompany,ForLLC,enterthetaxcla9sification(D=disregardedentity.c=corporation,S=SCorporation.P=PartnerShip>_
D Other (r.e. Bahkrupts, elc - see nslruclions) > 

-

Percentage

X1otr/" E otner: oh

Number of sellers including you

Enler your laxpayeildentification number ('TlN') in lhe appropriate box. The TIN provided musl match the name
given on Line 1 to avoid the imposition, under the lntema! Revenue Code, of civil or criminal p€nalties tor failing to
fumish a conect TIN and to insure the TIN passes the IRS'S NamemN matching softuare's TIN malchang Focess
wiich y,e utilize. For individuals, lhis is your socjal securiiy number (SSN). Hovrever for a resident alien, sole
proprietor, or disregarded entity, see 'Spedfic lnstrudions' below. For odter entities, it is your employer identrfrcation
numb€r(ElN). Note:lfmuniplesellersareinvotved,see'General lnstnjctions'below.

t. The numb€r shown on this form is my co.recl taxpayer identifcation number (or I am v€iting for a numb€r to be issued to me), and
2. I am a U.S. otizen or other U.S

3 rEtuce VSTE€ -ruzr'lg 2ot7
Person

Under p€nalties of pe0ury,
1. The numb€r shcrrr on this form is my correct taxpayer identification numb€r (or I am wailing for a number lo be issued to me), and
2. I am a Foreign Person (defined

Date >
G€NERAL IXSTRUCTIONS
Section r"reren@s are to t}le Intemal Fevenue Cod6 unless o"heNise noted.

Purposs of Fom
A peMn who is required to fll. an inlomation relurn on real estate trth ths IRS must
oblain your @rect taxpayer identifi€tion number (TlN) which may bo your scial *curity
number (SSN). indMdurl taxpayer numb€r (lTlN), adoptive taxpayer identliation
numbe(ATIN) or employer identjrication numb€r (ElN).

DefinlllonolaU.S.Pcrson Forfederaltsxpurposes,youareconsideredaU.S.peson
il you are:
. An lndividual who i3 s U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,
. A parlneEhip, @rporation. @mpsoy, or assrclation created or organlzed ln lhe Uniled

SLates or under the laws o, lhe United States,
. An eslate (olher than a loreign estate). or
. A dom6lictrusi (as de{ined in Regulations seclion 301.7701-7).

A foreign person indudcs a mnresidenl alien indrvldual, foreign corporalion, ,oreiBn
partneEhip, foreign trust. fo€ign estate, and any o',ie, person thal is nol a U.S. person. lt
slso includes € foreign branc}| ol a U.S. flnrnci8l inslitution il the forcign bmnch is a
quaiified intemedlary. ln most c€ses, lhe U.S. b€nch ot a loreign corpor€tion or
partncchip is treated 6s o roreign peBon.

Rcqulrement to Futnlsh TIN & Penaliles ,or Falluro
You are requled by law to prcvide us wth your 6rrec,l taxpayer idenlillcaiion numb€r
('TlN'). lf you do rct provide us with your @rrecl texpayer identjfiotjon number('TlN'),
you may be subiect to civil or cdminal penalues imposed by law. ll we disdose or u* your
TIN in vplatjon o, lederal law. we may be subject to civil or criminal penalties imcosed by
law.

- Addilonal File lnlomation
lCharQ€

I Vod
Debl2

tor 1099

I Add

I Change

MulUplo S€lleB
Each seller musl @mdete a separate tom. Spouses stlo hojd tiuo as
tenantg ln common, joinl tenBnts, tenants by the entjrety. or @mmunily prcpedy
will bo feated Es a slng e seller unless we a€ instruded otheryis.
SPECIFIC INSTRUCIIONS

Ploaso revlsw chart "Whst Name and Numbor to Givo- on page 2.

lndlvlduals. You must generolly enter the name shom on your inome lax
reium. However, it you hsve changed your last name, lor lnstance due lo
manls0c without lnfoming the S€isl Security Administratjon ot the nEme chEnqe
ente, your first name, the last name shwn on )rour social securily Gd. 8nd your
new last name.

ll more than one name is iisted. lisl flrst. and then cirde, the name of lhe
pcEon or enliiy wlrose number you entemd in Part I of lhe lom

Noto. lnN Applicant: Enter your individual name as il was enteed on your lom
W-7 Bppliceiron, line 1a. This should also b€ the same as the name you entered
on the Form 1040/1M0A,/1040E2 you filed with rcur spplication.

Llnltcd llabllllv componv (ILC\. Check the 'Limi(ed liability compan/ box only
and enter the appopriale c4de ror the tar dassif€alon ('D' fo. dis€garded entrty
'C'for @rporation,'P'lor psrtneEhip) in tie space pmvided and lol;ow thc
inslructions on lhe nexl page.

(Speclfic lnstrucilons Conilnued on Nexl Page)

Stre€t Address (your address after dosing)

,lS vfiN€ssn c@gf
ty, State, and Zp code l'/tt(l:*.t6ftN ", 8l Y

Under penalties of pequry, I c€rtify that:

No. ol l0€+S Foms requi.red

k[ liis fb?
is Nane./Enli, Pdy a NoftRecoid Seilar? t ]

Region: Hetropolitan FAST Omce: 2014 (3121) (KE)

in FAST

\\![A/O

..'*."'k,



Soecific lnstructions (Continued)

First American Title fnsurance Company
100 Bloomfield Htlls Parkway, Suite 195, 8loomfield Hllls, MI48304

(248)540-4102 Fax - (866)550-1079

FORM -INFOR
Card," frorn the local Social Security Administration offrce, or online at
ww.ssagpyot by callinq 1-800-772-1213. Use iorm W-7, 'Applic€tion for IRS

-nouiouat 

Taxpayer tdentlfication Number' to appty for an iTtt't.Limiled liabilitv comoenv lLLcl lContinuedl
ffi)'g a foreign LLC with a domestic owner) that is
disregarded as an enhty separate from its owner under Regulations sectron
2301.7701-3, en(er the owner's name on the 'Name" line. Enter the LLC'S name

or Form SS-4, 'Application for Employer ldentification Number,' to apply for an
ElN. You can app,y for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at
vvww is eov/bust esses and chckina on Emolover ldentificatron Number (ElN)vvww is eov/bustnCsses and chckina on Emoloverldentificatron Number (ElN)
unaer=Stan-ng a Eusness ' You c5n get Form:s W-7 and SS-4 from the iRS by
visiting ww its. oov or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676.For an LLC classified as a partnership or a corporation, enter the LLC'S

Dame on the "Name' line and enter 'same' on the'Business name/disregarded
entity name'line.
Other entities. Enter the name as shown on required federal tax documents on
iE'-Nar:re-l-ne This name should match the agieement, charter, order, cr o'.her
document creating the entity.

Sole proorietor. Enter your individual name as shown on your
1040/1040A/1040E2 on the'Name' line. You may enter your business, trade, or
'doing business" (DBA) name on the Business name/disregarded entity name
line.
Note: Check the appropriate box for your status (lndividuaysole Proprretor,
Corporatron, etc.)

Part l. Taxpayer ldentitication Numbor (TlN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. lf you are a resrdent alien and you do
not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS rndrvidual
iaxpayer identifcatron number (lTlN). Ente( it in lhe sooal security number box
lf you do not have an lTlN, see 'Holv lo get 6 flN" below

lf you are a single-member LLC that is drsregarded as an entity separate from
'ts owner lsee " Lin iled I i abihty con pa ny ( LLC)'' on page 1 ), enter the olvner's
SSN (or ElN, if you have one) Do mt enter the disregarded entity's EIN lf the
LLC is classifled as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's ElN.
Note : See the chart below for further clarifi cation of narne and Tl N
cornbinations.

on the'Business name/djsregarded entity name" line.

for one immediately To

1. lndividual
2. Spouses (who hold title as tenanls in common joint tenants, tenants
the enhrety, or community property)

3. Custodjan account of a minor (Uniform Gift to Minors Aci)
4. a. The usual revocable savings trust (grantor ls also trustee)

b. So-called trust account that is not a legal orvalid trust under state law

5. Sole proprieto(shjp or disregarded entity owned by an individual.
6. Disreqarded ent tv or Sole oroDrietorship ovrned

Note. Entering 'Applied Fo/ means that you have already applied for a TIN or
that you antend to apply for one soon. Note: A TIN is required if withholdjng is
required under FIRPTA
Caution: A disrqarded domeslic enlity that has a loreign owner must use lf,e
approp)ale Fom W-8.

Part ll. Certification
To establish to us that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign this form.
For property owned by spouses as tenants in common. ioint tenants, tenants by
the entirety, or community propeny, only the spouse whose TIN is shown iirst on
the Name line or is circled should sign.

Signature requirements: You must sign the cediilcation.

by

11

For this Name and E r ldenlitication Number
7. Disregarded entity not owned by an individual
8. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust
9. Corporale or LLC e,eding corporate status on Form 8832
1 0. Association, club religious, charitable, educational, or olher tax-

exempt organizaticn
Partnership or multi-member LLC
A broker or registered nominee

Accounl wth the Departmmt of Agriculture in lhe name of a public entaty
(such as a state or loc€l government, school districl, or prison) that receives
agricultural program payments

14 Grantor trust filing unde, the Form 1041 Filing Melhod or the Optional Form
1 .671

rlistlirslandcircJothenameolthepersonv/hosenumberyoufurnish. lfmlytrepersonhasanssN.thalperson'snumbermustbelurnished.
?CircJe lhe minols name and furnish lhe minors SSN.

you have one). but lhe IRS encourages you lo use your SSN.

tiue )

Noto: llnonameiscrrdedydrenmorethanonenameis|sted.thenumbef!./illbeconsideredlobeihatoflhefirslnan)elisted

ame and Number to Give

The indivadual

Show both.spouses, with the name of (he spouse strose SSN is usecl shown first
and circled'
The minoi
The grantor-trusteel

The aclual ownerl
The ownerr
The orvners

The owner
Legal entityl
The corporation or LLC electing corporate status
The organization

The partnershrp or multi-member LLC

The broker or nominee

The public entity

The trust

Region: l,lctropolitan FAST Office: 2014 (312i) (KE)

q1\\'
it -zl

How to set a TlN. lf



CERTIFICATION OF NON.FOREIGN STATUS
o

File Number:
Date:

Property Address:

3. The Colleen R. Galeski

'i.b- Lgi6lso

Subscribed and sworn to before me this June 01, 2017.

Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue code provides that a transferee (Purchaser) of a U.S. Real Property Interest must
withhold tax if the transferor (Seller) is a foreign person. For U,S, Tax purposes (including section 1445) the owner of a
disregarded entity (which has legal title to a U.S. real property interest under local law) will be the transferor of the
property and not the disregarded entify, To inform the transferee (Purchaser) that withholding of tax is not required upon
the disposition of a U.S. Real Property Interest by transferor (Seller), the undersigned hereby ceftifles the following on
behalf of transferor (Seller):

1. The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust is not a foreign corporation, foreign partnership, foreign
trust, or foreign estate (as those terms are defined in this Internal Revenue Code and Incorne Tax Regulations);

2. The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust is not a disregarded entity, as defined in Treas, Req.

51.144s-2(b)(2Xiii);

778258

June 01, 2017

3419 and Vacant Fort Street, Lincoln Park, MI 48146

Revocable Living Trust's U.S. employer identification number is
; and

4, The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust office address is:
515 Vanessa Court
Saline, MI 48176

The Colleen R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust understands that this certiflcation may be disclosed to the Internal
Revenue Service by transferee (Purchaser), and that any false statement contained herein could be punishable by fine,
imprisonment, or both;

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this ceftification and to the best of my knowledge and belief it
is true, correct and complete, and I further declare that I have authority to sign this document on behalf of The Colleen
R. Galeski Revocable Living Trust.

Seller(s):

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the
Colleen R Galeski Revocable Living Trust
dated March 22,2013

l.;. First American Title Insurance Company
File No: 778258



State of Michioan
county of iru^fA'€

John A. Ambrose, Successor Trustee of the Colleen R.

Galeski Revocable Living Trust dated March 22,
2013 subscribed and sworn to before me this June 01,
2477.

Notary Public: ealLLtft{vr t<, L()oK
Notary County/State : I w v*1Ne couN\X nlcl+t6'+.'
County Acting In: wrql€
Commission Expires: g^ot - Loft

This certification must be retained by the transferee (Purchaser), until "the end of the fifth taxable year following the
taxable year in which the transfer takes place".

First American Title Insurance Company
File No: 778258

,,{'aL{L



 

 

 
 

13500 Reeck Road Southgate, MI 48195   |   734.759.1600   |   Fax 734.282.6566   |   www.hengineers.com 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
December 4, 2017  
 
Ms. Leah DuMouchel, AICP 
Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
535 West William St. Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, MI, 48103-4978 
 
Re:   Renovations to Restaurant 

3419 Fort Street 
 City of Lincoln Park, MI 

Hennessey Project 72092 
   
 

Dear Ms. DuMouchel: 
 
Hennessey Engineers, Inc. completed our second review of the Preliminary Plan based on the plan 
revised October 10, 2017, and received via email December 1, 2017 from you. 
 
The proposed development is a conversion of an existing commercial salon to a restaurant.  The existing 
building is approximately 1000 square feet. 
 
Listed below are some comments which should be addressed in the Preliminary Plan approval but would 
not be grounds for a denial from an engineering feasibility standpoint: 
 
GENERAL 

1. Based on the site plan submitted all existing utilities and leads are being reused.  It is important 
that the developer realize these existing utilities are very old and may have reached their life 
expectancy.  It is our strong recommendation for the developer to at least videotape the existing 
sewer lead to determine its condition prior to performing any new renovation on the building.  If 
the service lead needs to be replaced the installation of the new service will need to be 
inspected by our office.     The developer should verify with the City the existing sanitary service 
type and size.  If it is undersized for the proposed building use it must be placed.  The 
developer’s engineer or architect shall determine the sanitary service lead capacity. 

2. The developer should verify with the City the existing water service type and size.  If it is a lead 
service or if the service is undersized for the proposed building use, it should be placed. The 
developer’s engineer or architect shall determine the water service lead capacity. 

3. The site plan shows angled parking with the exit from the parking lot to the existing public alley 
as the only exit drive.  Even though it is being used now we have concerns about the only exit to 
the site being the public alley.  A public alley is intended to be a public street and should not be 
used as one.  The alley does have broken concrete which should be replaced especially if it is 
used as the exit for the parking lot.  If this is approved as the exit then it would be our 
recommendation the new restaurant should maintain the alley.    
 

 



 

 
13500 Reeck Road Southgate, MI 48195   |   734.759.1600   |   Fax 734.282.6566   |   www.hengineers.com 

 
 

 

Renovation to Restaurant       Page 2 
3419 Fort Street        December 4, 2017 
City of Lincoln Park, MI 
Hennessey Project 72092 
 
 

4. There isn’t any proposed parking lot improvement shown on the plans however, the existing 
parking lot does show signs of cracking and open joints.  Repairs will have to be made to the 
existing parking lot to bring it up to City Standards.   At a minimum the joints should be sealed 
with a hot asphaltic based sealer and the parking lot should be completely sealed and restriped.  

5. There were several broken or cracked sidewalks in the Fort Street Right of Way that must be 
repaired.   The concrete sidewalks must be brought up to City Standards.  The drive approach is 
in good condition and will not need to be replaced.  

6. All of the plan sheets MUST be sealed and the cover sheet MUST be signed and sealed by a 
professional engineer, surveyor or architect licensed in Michigan.  
 

Comment 3 and 6 listed above should be addressed for the Planning Commission submittal.  If the site 
plan meets all other Planning Commission requirements the Planning Commission could approved the 
Preliminary Plan contingent upon them being submitted signed and sealed by a professional engineer, 
surveyor or architect licensed in Michigan. 
 
From an engineering feasibility our office does not have any issues other than 3 & 6 above with the 
approval of the Preliminary Site Plan submittal.  Therefore, from the engineering feasibility review it 
would be our recommendation for the “approval” of the Preliminary Site Plan.  If there will not be any 
utility or any parking lot improvements other than sealing the joints, the parking lot or any other site 
improvements we will not need to perform a detailed engineering review.    
 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 

 
James D. Hollandsworth, P.E., P.S. 
Lincoln Park Project Manager 
 
JDH/bd 
 
cc: John Kozuh, DPW Director, City of Lincoln Park 

John J. Hennessey, Hennessey Engineers, Inc. 
Ryan Kern, Hennessey Engineers, Inc. 
B.3 
R:\Municipalities\70000's Lincoln Park\72000's\72092 3419 Fort Street\3419 Fort 1St PC Review Dec 4, 2017.docx 



12/20/2017 Mail - ldumouchel@bria2.com

https://outlook.office365.com/owa/?realm=bulut.center&path=/mail/search 1/2

RE: Second Request for Site Plan Review: 3419 Fort St, Proposed
Restaurant

Leah
 
The Police Department has no issues with the site plans for the restaurant.   Please let me know if you need anything further
from the PD.
 
 
Chief R.Wa� ers  
 
From: Leah DuMouchel [mailto:ldumouchel@bria2.com]  
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2017 11:18 AM 
To: Fire Chief; Irenda Lockhart; Robert Wright; Ray Watters; Krystina Erdos; John Kozuh 
Cc: kisselkkk@aol.com; Matthew Coppler 
Subject: Second Request for Site Plan Review: 3419 Fort St, Proposed Restaurant
 
Hello again! I am awaiting comments on a proposed site plan at 3419 Fort St, converting a hair salon to a
restaurant, from the Fire Department, Police Department, and Department of Public Works. The Lincoln Park
Planning Commission has requested comment from these departments on all proposed site plans--and they really
do ask me during each review what your department has said about the project, so please know that your efforts
are well-spent! A link to all documents is below, and I am of course happy to answer any questions. Please submit
your comments to this email address by Wednesday, December 13. Thank you!
 
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7ntslswtluv46ng/AABeB-szQLKmN2hto3ZU5Yf_a?dl=0
 
Leah DuMouchel, AICP 
Senior Associate
Beckett&Raeder, Inc. 
Making Great Places for over 50 Years
535 West William St Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, MI 48103 
 
Office: 734.663.2622
Direct Line: 734.239.6616
Petoskey, MI   231.347.2523 
Traverse City, MI   231.933.8400 
Toledo, OH   419.242.3428 

Please visit us at www.bria2.com
 

From: Leah DuMouchel 
Sent: Friday, December 1, 2017 4:27 PM 

Ray Watters <RWatters@citylp.com>
Fri 12/15/2017 7:41 AM

To:Leah DuMouchel <ldumouchel@bria2.com>;

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7ntslswtluv46ng/AABeB-szQLKmN2hto3ZU5Yf_a?dl=0
http://www.bria2.com/


12/20/2017 Mail - ldumouchel@bria2.com

https://outlook.office365.com/owa/?realm=bulut.center&path=/mail/search 2/2

To: firechief@citylp.com; ilockhart@citylp.com; rwright@citylp.com; rwa� ers@citylp.com; kerdos@citylp.com;
jkozuh@citylp.com; james hollandsworth 
Cc: JMeyers@citylp.com 
Subject: Request for Site Plan Review: 3419 Fort St, Proposed Restaurant
 
Hello! I am in receipt of a site plan and application for review for 3419 Fort Street, proposing conversion from a
hair salon to a restaurant. The materials are available at the link below. As the Lincoln Park Planning Commission
has requested your input on site plans for their consideration, your response by Thursday, December 7 would be
greatly appreciated. Thanks so much!
 
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7ntslswtluv46ng/AABeB-szQLKmN2hto3ZU5Yf_a?dl=0
 

3419 Fort St - Restaurant - SPR
www.dropbox.com

Shared with Dropbox

 

 
Leah DuMouchel, AICP 
Senior Associate
Beckett&Raeder, Inc. 
Making Great Places for over 50 Years
535 West William St Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, MI 48103 
 
Office: 734.663.2622
Direct Line: 734.239.6616
Petoskey, MI   231.347.2523 
Traverse City, MI   231.933.8400 
Toledo, OH   419.242.3428 

Please visit us at www.bria2.com

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7ntslswtluv46ng/AABeB-szQLKmN2hto3ZU5Yf_a?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7ntslswtluv46ng/AABeB-szQLKmN2hto3ZU5Yf_a?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7ntslswtluv46ng/AABeB-szQLKmN2hto3ZU5Yf_a?dl=0
http://www.bria2.com/


CaseNo.

DateSubmitted

City of Lincoln Park

APPLICATION FOR SNE PI./IN REWEW
NOTICE TO APPLICAIYT: Applications for Site Plan Review by the Planning Commission must be
submitted to the City in substantially complete form at least thirty (30) days prior to the Planning
Commission's meeting at which the proposal will be mnsidered. The ap,plication must be accompanied by the
data specified in the Zoning Ordinance and Site Plan Review Guidelines, including fully dimensioned site
plans, plus the required review fees. Regular meetings of the Planning Commission are held on the second
Wednesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. All meetings are held at the Lincoln Park City Hall, 1355
Southfield Road, Lincoln Park, Michigan 48146. Phone number (313) 386-1800; Fax (313)386-2205.

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT:

I (we) the undersigrred, do hereby respectfully request Site Plan Review and provide the following infornntion

n

to assist in the review:

epprcant: fle l/r n k, q^€--
MuirruAdd**Jt7f de67T-ave /rn. co/q /ar< e/t,rz

t/

rY\2,.2

4tS) q(?b-*iq Fax:

Propely Owne(s) Name (if ttLei, t/,,, fiam€'Z
Mailing

ow^JEtz rr\ 6Hr:;? re fi.fpt)iy47\t €k trfl .pG ?/+Lo.N
i .u T o z+ c-!t t2AY * e,!, r a? E, 6 -( At'l &4 ,., r-

Loc*ionofProperty:StrestAddress: '3*11 lr-a?T tI . t-tttc:<sw}.t ?(, PVI 42,*b
Nearest Cross Streets: t-( O^4
Sidwell Number (Parcel ID# .- 1o Z- c) 'a-lble'aa I

PropertyDescription:
If part of a recorded plag provide lot numbers and suMMsion name. If not part of a recorded plat
(i.e., Aacreage parcel"), provide metes and bounds description. Attach separate sheets ifnecessary.

l?,o\ o?
At= 14MOtJ't

EC,o fl-D 11.

FT€. TR€ \,U

Existing Zoning (please check):

c SFRD SingleFamilyResidentialDistrict
c MFRD MultipleFamilyResidentialDstrict
G MHRD MobileHomeParkDistrict
G NBD NeighborhoodBusinessDistict
c MBD Municipal BusinessDisnict
G PUD PlannedUnitDevelopmentDistrict

G RBD Regional Business District
G CBD Central Business Dstict
G GID General Industrial District
c LID Lieht Industrial District
G CSD CommunityServiceDistrict

9D*z
Czt\-el\,/.rv Jrv., Fa- zi rl7 f\.ewl^|-.VPL, e'ar, f . E/E) w$t-- 

^P*t\t-ev3 : 45-oiL- cP,* tlt-5- -0ot irttD '*<-ati - c?> - t't b6 -or:i

PropertySize (Squarepg' 
.] t4U 9Q - FT' (acres;:

Email:

offi*t)',
Telephone:

-iD>- itt -



City of Lincoln Park
Application for Site Plan Review
Page? of4

Present Use of Property: Tfi€ I cl i up r u (' [5 PLe5A^,'7L\ UfteBM7.
TttE f-o$,t4g€. \:9e iP.A9 A B 6/}o-rY 

'ALJN

Proposed Use of Property:; 6 (*Ne L r*J i I H e:9 T13 Agrs t) U OTE

BuiLOrA/tc t^jTo ,N enARY*CI\rf Rtr5f(+utqArf.

Please Complete the Following Chart:

Type of Development

Detached SingleFamily

Attached Residential

Numberof Units Gross Floor Area Numberof Employees
an Lqroesf Shiff

Office

Commercial qqfr z*l t- ?
Industrial

Other

Professionals Who Prepared Plans:

A. Name: P Lotr I \-.E c-T, i v T tRNf+fr 0.M frt* 1t'rL

Mailing

DE-( llc rrr M t 4gLZt
. 1'l {tc w i c>E Mr5 RE

EmailAddress: a'{'c)tttoc-tg - tn1-@ q-+t-- a.e-t
Telephorrc:)1/a *t ':l 93qax:-- 

--Primary 
Design Responsibility:. ALL DBA\rlt p6b

B. Nanre: P {b-- fe-{ LIl/ D D ..r&o'eY ?L
t/ Mailing /5'7t CletrA1t aft /inta[r, farx 't1<tiflt

Address:_
to n 

^'(h 
a n Gainc z. / Q 4 7 $ctfue'' 9r{r#l

\-/ Address:

r"l"phon",9Xb- 3fi1'v1ll:- - PrimaryDesignResponsibility: .J u B-r.) -= Y

Mailing

Email Address:

Desigt Responsibility:.Telephone: __ Fr

S.P.R. Application: July 17, 2006



City of Lincoln Park
Application for Site Plan Review
Page 3 of4

ATTACH THE FOLLOWING:
1. Eight (8) individually folded copies of the site plans, sealed by a registered architect

engineer, landscape architect or community planner as well as ONE ( I ) Elecfoni c copy .

2. A briefwritEn descriptionofthe existing and proposed uses, including but not limited to:
hours of operatiorL number of employees on largest shift, number of company vehicles, etc.

3. Proofofpropertyownership.

4. Review comments or approval received from county, state, or federal agencies that
have jurisdiction over the project, including but not limited to:

G Wayne CountyRoad Commission

G Wayne County Health Division

G Wayne County Drain Commission

G Michigan Departrnent of Natural Resources

G Michigan Department of Transportation G Michigan Departrnent of Environmental auafity

PLEASE NOTE: The applicant or a designated representative MUST BE PRESENT at all scheduled review
meetinp or the site plan may be tabled due to lack of representation.

Failure to provide true and accurate information on this application shall provide sufficient grounds to deny
approval ofa site plan application or to revoke any permits granted subsequent to site plan approval.

APPLICANT' S ENDORSEMENT:

AII information contained herein is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I acknowledge that the
Planning Commission will not review my application unless all information required in this application and the
Zonrng Ordinance have been submitted. I further acknowledge that the City and its employees shall not be
held liablg for any glairqp that may arise as a result ofacceptance, processing or approval ofthis site plan
appli

/

V

Authorizing this Application

ir o/z
Date

tt, .
Date i ,

,t /r./z}
Date

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CITY CaseNo.

Date Submitted: Fee Paid:

By: Date ofP

R}TIWTNG COMMISSION ACTION

Appror"'d:- Denied: Date ofAction:

S.P.R. Application: August 2017



 

Error! Reference source not found. – 1 of 1 

January 10, 2017 
 
 
Meeting Date Submission Deadline Notices Posted 

January 10   

February 14   

March 14   

April 11   

May 9   

June 13   

July 11   

August 8   

September 12   

October 10   

November 14   

December 12   

 



1220.08  ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Author:
Kurt H. Schindler ,REGIONAL LAND USE
EDUCATOR, member MSU LAND USE TEAM
Phone: (231)779-9480
Fax: (231)779-9105
e-mail: schindl9@msu.edu
overland mail:

MSU Extension, Wexford County
401 N. Lake Street – Suite 400
Cadillac, Mich. 49601-1891

The author would like to thank the following
members of the MSU LAND USE TEAM for their
review and assistance with this publication:
#Jason Ball, MSU GRADUATE STUDENT
#Brad Neumann, LAND POLICY EDUCATOR, St
Joseph County;
#Jasneet Sharma, LAND POLICY EDUCATOR,
Hillsdale and Lenawee Counties;
#Lincoln Sweet, MSU GRADUATE STUDENT

Bringing
Knowledge

to Life!

“Thirty seven million 
acres is all the Michigan 

we will ever have.”

Former Governor
William G. Milliken

Michigan State University
Extension Land Use Team

http://ntweb11a.ais.msu.
edu/luaoe/index.asp

MSU is an affirmative-
action, equal-opportunity

institution. Michigan State

Land Use Series 
May 19, 2008

# 1E:
Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission

This is a presentation of one sample of bylaws for adoption by a Planning
Commission in Michigan.  This sample is based on Michigan Public Act 33 of 2008, as
amended, (being the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, M.C.L. 125.3801 et. seq.), and
recommendations of the author and reviewers of this pamphlet (see box, below).

The Michigan Planning Enabling Act is a new statute that changes how various
planning procedures are done, and provides new duties and power to many planning
commissions in the state.  The purpose of this act was to create a single set of procedures
to follow regardless of whether planning is being done by a city, village, township, or by
a county.  After September 1, 2008 (the effective date of the act) only the procedures in
the Michigan Planning Enabling Act should be used, as the act replaces the following
statutes:
• P.A. 285 of 1931, as amended, (being the Municipal Planning Act, M.C.L. 125.31

et seq.)
• P.A. 282 of 1945, as amended, (being the County Planning Act, M.C.L. 125.101

et seq.)
• P.A. 168 of 1959, as amended, (being the Township Planning Act, M.C.L.

125.321 et seq.)
 One of the features of the new act was to require a much more comprehensive set

of bylaws for a planning commission.  For example, the act makes reference to bylaws
several times:
• “The member is disqualified from voting on the matter if so provided by the bylaws

or by a majority vote of the remaining
members of the planning commission”
§15(9).

• “Unless the legislative body, by
ordinance, defines conflict of interest for
the purposes of this subsection, the
planning commission shall do so in its
bylaws” §15(9).



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 2 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

• “The term of each officer shall be 1 year, with
opportunity for reelection as specified in bylaws
adopted under section 19” §17(1).

• “A planning commission shall adopt bylaws for
the transaction of business . . .” §19(1).

• “Unless the bylaws provide otherwise, a special
meeting of the planning commission may be

called by the chairperson or by 2 other
members . . .” §21(1).

• “Unless the bylaws provide otherwise, the
secretary shall send written notice of a special
meeting to planning commission members not
less than 48 hours before the meeting” §21(1).

Related Publications
There are also separate procedural checklists

for performing other planning and zoning functions. 
They are:
• Land Use Series: “Check List #1A; To Create a

Planning Commission or Amend an Existing
Planning Commission Ordinance.”

• Land Use Series: “#1B; Sample Ordinance to create
a planning commission”

• Land Use Series: “#1C; Summary of changes
between new Michigan Planning Enabling Act and
the three old planning acts: Municipal Planning Act,
County Planning Act, and Township Planning Act.”

• Land Use Series: “Checklist #1D; Steps to
Transition an Existing Planning Commission to
Comply with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act”

• Land Use Series: “#1E; Sample Bylaws for a
planning commission.”

• Land Use Series: “Checklist #1F; What Should be in
a Master Plan”

• Land Use Series: “Checklist #1G; For Adoption of a
Plan in Michigan”

• Land Use Series: “Checklist #1H; The Five Year
Plan Review.

• Land Use Series: “Checklist #1I; For Adoption of an
Amendment to a Plan”

• Land Use Series: “Checklist #1J; Adopting and
Updating a Capital Improvement Program”

• Land Use Series: “Checklist #1K; Review of
Infrastructure and Public Capital Expenditure”

• Land Use Series: “Checklist #1L; Adoption or
Amendment of Subdivision Rules”

• Land Use Series: “#1M; How Governments Make
Submissions on a Neighbor’s or County’s Proposed
Plan”

• Land Use Series: “#1N; How a Planning
Commission Should Respond to Submissions”

• Land Use Series, “Checklist #2; for Adoption of a
Zoning Ordinance in Michigan.”

• Land Use Series, “Checklist #3; for Adoption of an
Interim Zoning Ordinance in Michigan.”

• Land Use Series, “Checklist #4; for Adoption of a
Zoning Ordinance Amendment (Including Pud) in
Michigan”

• Land Use Series, “Checklist #5: for Processing a
Special Use Permit (Including Pud) Application in
Michigan.”

• Land Use Series, “Checklist #6: for Processing a
Zoning Appeal and Variance in Michigan.”

All of these are available at www.msue.msu.edu/lu/.

Glossary
The following terms are used in this publication,

and have the following specific meanings.
§ means the section number of Public Act 33 of

2008, as amended, (being the Michigan Planning
Enabling Act, M.C.L. 125.3801 et seq.), 

Chief administrative official means the manager
or other highest nonelected administrative official of a
city or village.

Chief elected official means the mayor of a city,
president of a village, supervisor of a township, or chair
of a county board of commissioners.

Ex officio member means a member of a planning
commission, with full voting rights unless otherwise
specified by city or village charter, by virtue of holding
another office for the term of that office.

Legislative Body means the county board of
commissioners of a county, the board of trustees of a
township, the council of a city or village, or other similar
elected governing body of a county, township, city, or
village.

Local Unit of Government means a county or
municipality.

Municipality means a city, village or township.
Plan means any plan adopted under the Michigan

Planning Enabling Act or one of the three former
planning acts, regardless of what it is titled.

Planning Commission means the local unit of
government planning commission created under the
Michigan Planning Enabling Act or one of the three
former planning acts, regardless of what it is titled.

Planning jurisdiction means the area
encompassed by one of the following:
• For a city or village, the legal boundaries of a city or

village, respectively, and any area outside of the city
or village boundary that the planning commission
deems related to the planning of the city or village; 

• For a township, the legal boundaries of a township
outside the limits of a city(ies) and village(s);

• For a township who’s planning commission was
formed under P.A. 285 of 1931, as amended,
(M.C.L. 125.31 et seq.), the legal boundaries of a
township outside the limits of a city(ies) and
village(s), and any area outside of the township
boundary that the planning commission deems
related to the planning of the township. (See
§31(1)(b))

• For a county, the legal boundaries of a county
outside the limits of a city(ies) and village(s); or the
county including any  city(ies) and village(s) which
has adopted the county plan (See §31(1)).



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 3 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

• “A planning commission may adopt bylaws
relative to compensation and expenses of its
members and employees for travel when engaged
in the performance of activities authorized by the
legislative body, including, but not limited to,
attendance at conferences, workshops,
educational and training programs, and meetings”
§23(1).
  In addition to the above, there are also indirect

references to bylaws throughout the act.
For any step in the process of reviewing bylaws

and facilitating the discussion and decisions about
how your bylaws are written, your county Michigan
State University Extension can assist, or can contact
members of the MSU Extension Land Use Team for
assistance.

This pamphlet  is not designed as a substitute for
reading and understanding the Michigan Planning
Enabling Act.  This outline is not a substitute for

legal advice or for professional planner services.
The following represents one sample set of

bylaws for a planning commission in Michigan.
These are written in an attempt to cover most needs
that may occur.  Before adoption they should be
reviewed, and sections which are not pertinent
omitted.  In the sample bylaws, below, text which
appears in brackets ( [ ] ) should be replaced with
the specific name, number, or date as indicated.
Material in a sidebar, or box, includes additional
discussion and alternatives to consider.

These sample bylaws are also available in a
separate word processor document (Microsoft
Word™ and WordPerfect™) at the website
www.msue.msu.edu/lu.  The material in sidebars, or
boxes, in this pamphlet are not in the word
processor version of the sample bylaws.  

PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAW S
of [date]

Adopted, effective immediately, [date, time]
As amended through ___________

1. Name Purpose

A. The name shall be the [local unit of government]
Planning Commission, hereafter known as the
"Commission".

B. These Bylaws are adopted by the Commission to
facilitate the performance of its duties as outlined in
P.A. 33 of 2008, as amended, being the Michigan
Planning Enabling Act, (M.C.L. 125.3801 et seq.),
hereinafter “the Planning Act.”

C. These Bylaws are also adopted to facilitate the
duties of the Commission for administration of a
zoning ordinance as outlined in P.A. 110 of 2006,
as amended, being the Michigan Zoning Enabling
Act, (M.C.L. 125.3101 et seq.), hereinafter “the
Zoning Act.”

2. Membership

A. Members.  Members of the Commission are
appointed by the [legislative body] pursuant to the
[local unit of government]  Planning Commission
Ordinance of [date], as amended.
1. First priority, each member shall represent and

advocate what is best for the [local unit of

Adopt bylaws
“A planning commission shall adopt bylaws
for the transaction of business . . .” §19(1).

The Zoning Act
If the planning commission does not have
zoning responsibilities, then section 1.C. of
the Bylaws should be deleted.

Membership of the Commission.
Membership of the Commission should be
reviewed and edited carefully.  This sample is
written assuming membership of the
Commission represents specific topical
interests, and is nominated by organizations
representing those interest groups. It should
be edited so it reflects the membership
established in the local unit of government’s
ordinance creating the planning commission.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 4 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

government] as a whole, putting aside personal or special interests.
2. Second priority, each member shall represent  a separate important segment of the community, as

appointed by the [legislative body]:
a. One citizen at-large member.
b. One citizen member representing environmental interests:  Attend and/or be familiar with the desires

and needs of the environmental organizations in [local unit of government] (including but not limited
to conservation clubs, garden clubs, lake and river landowner associations and the Michigan
Department of Environmental Quality land and water programs).

c. One citizen member representing agriculture, forestry, and land use interests:  Attend and/or be
familiar with the desires and needs of the Farm Bureau, Soil Conservation District, Michigan
Department of Natural Resources Forestry Division, United States Forest Service, Resource
Conservation and Development Council, municipal planning and/or zoning boards.

d. One citizen member representing governmental municipal interests:  Attend and/or be familiar with
the desires and needs of the county chapter of the Michigan Townships Association, cities and
villages, and county government.

e. One citizen member representing education interests:  Attend and/or be familiar with the desires and
needs of the local school districts, intermediate school district, College, University, MSU Extension,
and other educational institutions.

f. One member representing recreation and tourism interests:  Attend and/or be familiar with the desires
and needs of the tourist division of the Chamber of Commerce, visitor/convention bureau, hotel/motel
tourist business owners; recreation associations; civic and social organizations; the arts; snowmobile
and other recreation clubs; Michigan Department of Natural Resources Parks Division, Recreation
Division, and W aterways Division.

g. One citizen member representing industrial and economic interests:  Attend and/or be familiar with
the desires and needs of industrial associations, the Chamber of Commerce, economic development
corporations, organized labor, and trade associations.

h. One member representing transportation and communication interests: Attend and/or be familiar with
the desires and needs of the County Road Commission, village and city road agencies, telephone
companies, Internet providers, postal and other parcel delivery services, news media, mass/bus
transportation systems, airports, and harbors.

i. One member representing sanitation, environmental health, housing, and human services interests.
Attend and/or be familiar with the desires and needs of public utility providers, water and sewer
providers, the County Health Department, councils on aging, and human services collaborative
bodies.

j. One member shall be a member of the [legislative body]:  Attend and/or be familiar with the desires
and needs of the [legislative body] and its committees; adjacent legislative bodies and their planning
commissions, and regional multi-county planning agency.

B. Liaisons. The purpose of liaisons is to provide
certain [local unit of government] officials and quasi-
officials the ability to participate in discussions with
the Commission, in addition to speaking in public
participation, and nothing else.  Liaisons cannot
vote, introduce motions, initiate any other
parliamentary action, be counted for a quorum or be
expected to comply with attendance requirements
pursuant to Section 2.C of these bylaws.  Liaisons, if not already appointed Commission members, are:
1. Planning Department staff, and their agents and consultants.
2. The Commission’s consultants.
3. [local unit of government] Attorney.
4. [local unit of government] engineering, water, sewer, DPW , or similar department heads.
5. [local unit of government] attorney and  corporate council.
6. [local unit of government]  Administrator.
7. Chairman of the [legislative body].
8. Manager of the County Road Commission and village or city road agency.
9. The county Emergency Management Coordinator.
10. The county Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Officer.
11. District Health Department senior or supervisory Registered Sanitarian.

Liaison Members.  
This section should be reviewed carefully. 
Review the list to insure there are not any
additions or deletions.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 5 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

12. The County Surveyor, except when the issue
before the Commission is to review his, or his
client's work.

13. The County Register of Deeds.
14. The County Extension Director.
15. The County Soil Conservation Service Soil

Conservationist.
16. Regional (multi-county) Planning Staff.

C. Attendance.  If any member of the Commission is
absent from three consecutive regularly scheduled
meetings, then that member shall be considered
delinquent.  Delinquency shall be grounds for the
[legislative body] to remove a member from the
Commission for nonperformance of duty, or
misconduct, after holding a public hearing on the
matter.  The Commission secretary, or acting
secretary in the absence of the elected secretary,
shall keep attendance records and shall notify the
[legislative body] whenever any member of the
Commission is absent from three consecutive
regularly scheduled meetings, so the [legislative
body] can consider further action allowed under law
or excuse the absences.

D. Training.  Each member shall have attended at
least four hours per year of training in planning and
zoning during the member’s current term of office.
If so provided in the ordinance creating the
Commission, failure to meet the training
requirements shall result in the member not being
reappointed to the Commission. Training shall be
provided by one or more of the following
organizations: Michigan Association of Planning,
Michigan State University Extension, Michigan
Townships Association, Michigan Municipal
League, continuing education programs of
Michigan State University, University of Michigan,
Northern Michigan University, Central Michigan
University, or W ayne State University.

E. Incompatibility of Office.  
1. Each member of the Commission shall avoid

conflicts of interest and/or incompatibility of
office.  As used here, a conflict of interest shall
at a minimum include, but not necessarily be
limited to, the following:
a. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or

reviewing a case concerning him or her.
b. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or reviewing a case concerning work on land owned by him or her

or which is adjacent to land owned by him or her.
c. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or reviewing a case involving a corporation, company, partnership,

or any other entity in which he or she is a part owner, or any other relationship where he or she may
stand to have a financial gain or loss.

d. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or reviewing a case which is an action which results in a pecuniary
benefit to him or her.

Training
The ordinance creating the planning
commission should include a requirement
that training is required to be eligible for
reappointment.  Details on how that is done
should be in the bylaws.

The Statute Requires:
“The member is disqualified from voting on
the matter if so provided by the bylaws or by a
majority vote of the remaining members of the
planning commission” §15(9).

“Unless the legislative body, by ordinance,
defines conflict of interest for the purposes of
this subsection, the planning commission shall
do so in its bylaws” §15(9).

Adjacent Land and Conflict of Interest
Some thought should be given to how

far away from one’s own property one goes
to consider it to be a conflict of interest.  In a
very small community, with a large distance
from the property, it may be hard to ever have
a situation which is not a conflict for a
number of members of the Commission. 
This practical matter should be balanced with
the need to avoid the appearance of conflict
and actual conflicts.

Courts have only gone as far as the
adjacent parcel, and do not consider it a
conflict beyond that.  Some communities
have used a “within 300 feet” standard (the
same distance where notices are required).



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 6 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

e. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or reviewing a case concerning his or her spouse, children, step-
children, grandchildren, parents, brothers,
sisters, grandparents, parents in-law,
grandparents in-law, or members of his or
her household.

f. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or
reviewing a case where his or her employee
or employer is:
(1) an applicant or agent for an applicant,

or
(2) has a direct interest in the outcome.

2. If there is a question whether a conflict of
interest exists or not, the question shall be put
before the Commission.  W hether a conflict of
interest exists or not shall be determined by a
majority vote of the remaining members of the
Commission.

3. W hen a conflict of interest exists, the member of the Commission, or committee, shall do all of the
following immediately, upon first knowledge of the case and determining that a conflict exists:
a. declare a conflict exists at the next meeting of the Commission or committee:
b. cease to participate at the Commission or committee meetings, or in any other manner, or represent

one's self before the Commission, its staff, or others, and
c. during deliberation of the agenda item before the Commission or committee, leave the meeting or

remove one's self from the front table where members of the Commission sit, until that agenda item
is concluded.

4. If a member of the Commission is appointed to another office, which is an incompatible office with his or
her membership on the Commission, then on the effective date of the appointment to the other office, that
shall result in an automatic resignation from the Commission.  If a member of another office is appointed
to the Commission, which is an incompatible
office with his or her membership in the other
office, then on the effective date of the
appointment to the Commission, that shall
result in an automatic resignation from the
other office.

3. Duties of all members.

A. Ex Parte contact 
1. Members shall avoid Ex Parte contact about

cases where an administrative decision is
before the commission whenever possible.

2. Despite one’s best efforts it is sometimes not
possible to avoid Ex Parte contact.  W hen that
happens, the member should take detailed
notes on what was said and report to the
Commission at a public meeting or hearing

what was said, so that every member and other interested
parties are made aware of what was said.

B. Site Inspections
1. Site inspections shall be done by the zoning

administrator or other staff.  A written report of
the site inspection shall be orally presented to
the Commission at a public meeting or hearing
on the site.

2. If desired, no more than one member of the
Commission may accompany the zoning
administrator or staff on a site inspection.

C. Not Voting On the Same Issue Twice.

Family and Conflict of Interest
Some thought should be given to how

expansive, or limited is the list of who is
included in “family”.  In a very small
community, with an expansive list of family,
it may be hard to ever have a situation which
is not a conflict.  This practical matter should
be balanced with the need to avoid
appearance of and actual conflicts.

Ex Parte Contact
There are several different ways to handle Ex
Parte Contact.  The goal is that private
conversations outside of a public meeting do
not take place with members of the
Commission.  And if that does happen, then
have a means to share the content of the
conversation with everyone involved, so
everyone knows what was said and those that
wish to can provide a rebuttal.

Site Inspections
There are many alternative ways for site
inspections to be handled.  Some
communities have the entire Commission do
a site inspection as a group.  If that is done
the site inspection must be posted as a public
meeting and there must be accommodations
for the audience to also come along.  What is
important is that the bylaws spell out how it
will be done in your community.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 7 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

1. Any member of the Commission shall avoid situations where they are sitting in judgement and voting on
a decision which they had a part in making.  As used here, sitting in judgement and voting on a decision
which they had a part in making, at a minimum shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the
following:
a. W hen the appeal is of an administrative or other decision by Commission and the member of the

Commission sits both on the Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals.
b. W hen the appeal is of an administrative or other decision by any committee of the Commission,

[legislative body],or  other committee and the member of the Commission sits both on that committee
and Zoning Board of Appeals or both on the Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals.

c. W hen the case is an administrative decision which was decided by the Commission and sent to the
[legislative body] for further action, and the member of the Commission sits both on the Commission
and [legislative body].

D. Accepting gifts.
1. Gifts shall not be accepted by a member of the

Commission or liaisons from anyone connected
with an agenda item before the Commission.

2. As used here, gifts, shall mean cash, any
tangible item, or service, regardless of value;
and food valued over $10.

3. This section does not apply to the Commission
accepting gifts for the exercise of its functions
pursuant to M.C.L. 125.3823(3), §23(3) of the
Planning Act.

4. In townships gifts shall only be accepted by the
township board on behalf of the planning
commission.

E. Spokesperson for the Commission.
1. Free and open debate should take place on

issues before the Commission.  Such debate
shall only occur at meetings of the Commission.

2. Once a vote is taken and an issue is decided by
vote, the duty of each member of the
Commission is to represent the position
reflected by the outcome of the vote.  Minority
reports and requests for reconsideration may
take place only at an open meeting of the
Commission.

3. From time-to-time, or on a specific issue the Commission may appoint a spokesperson for the
Commission for all matters which occur outside of the meetings of the Commission..

F. Code of Conduct..  Each member, upon
appointment, shall sign a code of conduct.

4. Officers

A. Selection.  At the regular meeting in [insert the
specific month] of each year, the Commission shall
select from its membership a Chair, Vice-Chair,
Secretary, and Deputy Secretary.  All officers are
eligible for reelection.  In the event the office of the
Chair becomes vacant, the Vice-Chair shall
succeed to this office for the unexpired term and the Commission shall select a successor to the office of
Vice-Chair for the unexpired term.  In the event the office of the Secretary becomes vacant, the Deputy
Secretary shall succeed to this office for the unexpired term and the Commission shall select a successor to
the office of Deputy Secretary for the unexpired term.  The Commission or Secretary may also designate
another person who is not a member of the Commission to be the recording secretary.

B. Tenure.  The Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary shall take office January 1 following their selection and shall
hold office for a term of one year or until their successors are selected and assume office.

Accepting Gifts
There are many alternative ways for how to
handle members of the planning commission
receiving gifts.  There is not a “right” or a
“wrong” way to do it.  It is important this is
discussed and the bylaws spell out the rules
to which your commission agrees.  Consider
that it may be okay for small gifts to be
received (a box of candy for example), but
not something that might be viewed by the
public as a bribe.

Concerning section 3.D.4.: This
subsection is not needed and should be
deleted from bylaws for a city, village, and
county planning commission, and for
townships with a  planning commission
created under the Municipal Planning Act
(P.A. 285 of 1931).

Code of Conduct
A sample code of conduct is available at
www.msue.msu.edu/lu.  A code of conduct
could also be combined with an oath of
office, if such oaths are practice in the
community.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 8 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

C. Chair's Duties.  The Chair retains his or her ability to discuss, make motions and vote on issues before the
Commission.  The Chair shall:
1. Preside at all meetings with all powers under parliamentary procedure;
2. Shall rule out of order any irrelevant remarks; remarks which are personal; remarks about another's race,

religion, sex, physical condition, ethnic background, beliefs, or similar topics; profanity; or other remarks
which are not about the topic before the Commission;

3. Restate all motions as pursuant to Section 5.E of these Bylaws;
4. Appoint committees;
5. Appoint officers of committees or choose to let the committees select their own officers.
6. May call special meetings pursuant to Section 5.B of these Bylaws;
7. Act as member and Chair of the Executive Committee pursuant to Section 7.A of these Bylaws;
8. Act as an Ex-Officio member of all committees of the Commission;
9. Appoint an Acting-Secretary in the event the Secretary is absent from a Commission meeting.
10. Review with the Secretary or staff, prior to a Commission meeting, the items to be on the agenda if he

or she so chooses;
11. Periodically meet with the Planning Director and/or other Planning Department staff to review Planning

Department operation, procedures, and to monitor progress on various projects.
12. Annually perform a job evaluation of the Planning Director, discuss the evaluation with the Planning

Director, and provide a copy of the evaluation for the Planning Department and [local governing body]'s
personnel files;

13. Chair or perform a major role in the interview and selection process for a Planning Director;
14. Act as, or delegate someone to act as, the Planning Director in the absence of a Planning Director;
15. Act as the Commission's and Planning Department's chief spokesman and lobbyist to represent the

Commission at local, regional, and state government levels.
16. Represent the Commission, along with the [legislative body] Commission member, before the [legislative

body]; and
17. Perform such other duties as may be ordered by the Commission.

D. Vice-Chair’s Duties.  The Vice-Chair shall:
1. Act in the capacity of Chair, with all the powers and duties found in Section 4.C of these Rules, in the

Chair's absence;
2. Act as member and Vice Chair of the Executive Committee pursuant to Section 7.A of these Rules; and
3. Perform such other duties as may be ordered by the Commission.

E. Secretary’s Duties.  The Secretary shall:
1. Execute documents in the name of the Commission;
2. Be responsible for the minutes of each meeting, pursuant to section 6.A of these Bylaws if there is not

a recording secretary.
3. Review the draft of the minutes, sign them, and submit them for approval to the Commission and shall

have them spread in suitable volumes.  Copies of minutes shall be distributed to each member of the
Commission prior to the next meeting of the Commission (the Secretary may delegate this duty to
Commission staff);

4. Receive all communications, petitions, and reports to be addressed by the Commission, delivered or
mailed to the Secretary in care of the Planning Department Office;

5. Keep attendance records pursuant to Section 2.C of these Bylaws;
6. Provide notice to the public and members of the Commission for all regular and special meetings,

pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended, M.C.L. 15.261 et seq. (the Secretary
may delegate this duty to Commission staff);

7. Prepare an agenda for Commission meetings pursuant to Section 5.K of these Bylaws (the Secretary may
delegate this duty to Commission staff);

8. Act as member and Secretary of the Executive Committee pursuant to Section 7.A of these Bylaws;
9. May hire on behalf of the Commission for the local unit of government a Commission recording secretary

(who shall not be a member of the Commission); and
10. Perform such other duties as may be ordered by the Commission.

F. Deputy Secretary’s Duties.  The Deputy Secretary shall:
1. Act in the capacity of Secretary, with all the powers and duties found in Section 4.E of these Rules, in the

Secretary's absence; and
2. Perform such other duties as may be ordered by the Commission.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 9 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

G. Recording Secretary’s Duties.  The Recording Secretary shall not be a member of the commission or any of
its committees, and shall:
1. At each meeting take notes for minutes and

prepare a first draft of minutes pursuant to
section 6.A of these Bylaws for review and
signature by the Secretary; and

2. Perform such other duties as may be ordered
by the Commission or secretary.

5. Meetings

A. Regular meetings.  Meetings of the Commission will
be held the [insert a number] [enter a day of the
week] of every month at 7 p.m. at [location building
name and address].  W hen the regular meeting day falls on a legal holiday, the Commission shall select a
suitable alternate day in the same month.  An annual notice or regularly scheduled Commission meetings shall
comply with P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended, (being the Michigan Open Meeting Act M.C.L. 15.261 et seq.) 

B. Special Meetings.  Special meetings shall be called
in the following manner:
1. By the Chair.
2. By any two members of the Commission.
3. By the Chair at the request of any non member

of the commission, upon payment of a non-
refundable fee to cover costs of the special
meeting.  The fee shall be calculated as
follows: The current amount of per diem paid
times the total number on the Commission,
regardless if they attend the meeting or not,
plus the sum of travel reimbursement of each
member, regardless if they each attend the
meeting or not, plus the total Planning
Department budget, which represents the costs
of operating the Planning Department, divided
by 365.

4. Notice of special meetings shall be given by the
Secretary to members of the Commission at
least forty eight (48) hours prior to such
meeting and shall state the purpose, time, day,
month, date, year and location of the meeting
(the Secretary may delegate this function to
staff).   In addition notices shall comply with P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended, (being the Michigan Open
Meetings Act M.C.L. 15.261 et seq.).

C. Recess.  The Chair, or the Commission, after the meeting has been in session for two hours (not including
site inspections), shall suspend the Commission’s business and evaluate the remaining items on its agenda.
The commission shall then decide to finish that meetings agenda, may act to continue the meeting on another
day (fix the time at which to adjourn), or complete some agenda items and continue the meeting on another
day to complete other agenda items or postpone certain agenda items to the next meeting.  If applicable such
action shall include the time, day, month, date, year, and location the Commission will reconvene.  If more
than 18 hours will pass before the reconvened Commission, public notice shall be given to comply with P.A.
267 of 1976, as amended, (being the Michigan Open Meeting Act M.C.L. 15.261 et seq.).  Upon reconvening,
a roll call of attendance shall be the first item of business before proceeding with the same agenda.  The
commission shall resume with the same meeting agenda, proceeding at the same point where they left off,
without the addition of additional business.

D. Quorum.  More than half the total number of seats for members of the Commission, regardless if vacancies
exist or not, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the taking of official action for all
matters before the Commission.  W henever a quorum is not present at a regular or special meeting, those
present shall adjourn the meeting to another day.

E. Motions.

Meeting time, location
Section 5.A. should include the location and
meeting time, e.g. “Third Wednesday of each
month, at 7pm in the courthouse, 123 Fourth
Street, Anytown.”  The act requires a
planning commission meet at least four times
a year (§21(1)).

The Statute Requires:
“Unless the bylaws provide otherwise, a
special meeting of the planning commission
may be called by the chairperson or by 2 other
members, . . . .” §21(1).  Thus the option is
different if different rules for calling a special
meeting exist.

The Statute Requires:
“Unless the bylaws provide otherwise, the
secretary shall send written notice of a special
meeting to planning commission members not
less than 48 hours before the meeting” §21(1). 
Thus the option for different rules to give
notice exists.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 10 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

1. Motions shall be restated by the Chair before a vote is taken.
2. Findings of Fact.  All actions taken in an administrative capacity (including but not limited to, special use

permits, subdivisions, zoning, site plan review, planned unit developments, review and submission on
another municipality’s proposed plan, review and submission on a capital improvement, review of
township zoning) shall include each of the following parts.
a. A finding of fact, listing what the Commission determines to be relevant facts in the case in order to

eliminate misleading statements, hearsay, irrelevant, and untrue statements.
b. Conclusions to list reasons based on the facts for the Commission's action, often directly related, or

not, to a finding of compliance, or noncompliance, to standards.
c. The Commission's action; recommendation or position, approval, approval with conditions, or

disapproval.
F. Voting.  Voting shall be by voice and shall be

recorded as passing or failing.  Roll call votes will be
recorded only upon request by a member of the
Commission and shall be recorded by "yes" or "no".
Members must be present to cast a vote.  Voting by
proxy shall not occur.  The affirmative vote of a
majority of those present or a majority of a quorum,
whichever is greater, shall be necessary for the
adoption of motions.  The affirmative vote of a
majority of the total number of seats for members of
the Commission, regardless if vacancies or
absences exist or not, shall be necessary for the
adoption, or recommendation for adoption, of any
plan or amendment to a plan.

G. Commission Action.  Action by the Commission on any matter on which a hearing is held shall not be taken
until the hearing has been concluded.

Vote for City or Village Plan Adoption
If a city or village, the last sentence of

“Voting” should be replaced with the
following:
“The affirmative vote of b  the total number of
seats for members of the Commission,
regardless if vacancies or absences exist or not,
shall be necessary for the adoption, or
recommendation for adoption, of any plan or
amendment to a plan.”



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 11 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

H. Parliamentary Procedure.  Parliamentary procedure
in Commission meetings shall be informal.
However, if required to keep order, Commission
meetings shall then be governed by Roberts Rules

of Order Newly Revised, (10  Edition, Perseusth

Publishing, New York, 2000 (ISBN 0-7382-037-6))
for issues not specifically covered by these Bylaws.
W here these Bylaws conflict, or are different than
Robert’s Rules of Order, then these Bylaws control.

I. Public Participation.  All regular and special
meetings, hearings, records, and accounts shall be
open to the public.
1. All public comment on all agenda items should

be presented at the beginning of the meeting
where provided in the printed agenda.  After
that point during the meeting, public comment
is normally not allowed; however, sometimes
the Commission may direct questions to
members of the public.  Public comment is at
the beginning of the meeting so the
Commission can hear concerns and questions
before acting on an issue.  Those making public
comment are expected to be familiar with the
issue and have prepared comments ahead of
time.  To help the public in preparing for the
meeting, any written material shall be made
available without cost for members of the public
asking for a copy prior to the meeting.

2. The Chair may limit the amount of time allowed
for each person wishing to make public
comment at a Commission meeting.  The Chair
may ask members of the audience to caucus
with others sharing similar positions so they
may select a single spokesperson.  If a single
spokesperson is selected, that individual shall
be able to make public comment at the
Commission meeting without time limit or an extended time limit.

J. Consensus Business.  Certain items of business before the Commission are routine matters where no
discussion normally occurs or is expected to occur and a consensus for adoption normally occurs or is
expected to occur.  The individual preparing the agenda may mark such items on the agenda as a Consent
Item, if that individual feels it qualifies as consensus business.  The agenda or material presented on the issue
should indicate the proposed action (approve, disapprove, no comment, approve with modification).  First, any
Consent Item can be removed by request of a member.  It is automatically removed if discussed during Public
Participation.  Second, a motion to adopt the Consent Items can be made, in effect adopting all agenda items
still included as Consent Items.  The approval of m inutes and the expense report shall be proposed on the
agenda as Consent Items.  Consensus business can be proposed for any item on the agenda, but shall never
include any of the following:
1. Items of business which are listed in Section 18 of these bylaws.
2. Review of plans and zoning ordinances, or any part or amendment thereto.
3. Action on special use permits, planned unit developments, site plans, and similar administrative actions.
4. Election of officers.
5. Any item not printed on the agenda which is delivered, along with adequate supporting information, to

Commissioners prior to the meeting.
The motion to adopt Consent items in the minutes shall clearly list each item and indicate its action/disposition.

K. Order of Business.  Agenda.  The Secretary, or designee, shall prepare an Agenda for each meeting and the
order of business shall be as follows:
(A) Call to order, roll call, and Pledge of Allegiance.

Parliamentary Procedure.
There are several editions of Robert’s Rules
of Order ranging from 1876-2000.  There are
also different takes on Robert’s such as
simplified versions by various publishers. 
There are also different rules of order to
consider such as: 
• Mason's Manual of Legislative Procedure

(by Paul Mason, Natl Conference of
State, (ISBN-10: 1580241166));

• Democratic Rules of Order (Gordon
Soules Book Publishers Ltd.,  Gibsons
BC  Canada (ISBN 0969926049));

• Standard Code of Parliamentary
Procedure (by Alice Sturgis,
McGraw-Hill Companies (ISBN-10:
0070625220)); and 

• Jefferson's Manual (Manual of
Parliamentary Practice for the Use of the
Senate of the United States, (by Thomas
Jefferson in 1801, as revised, U.S.
Government Printing Office).

Some are simpler and easier to understand
than Robert’s.  Any can be cited in one’s
bylaws.  It is important that bylaws are
specific as to which rules of order and which
version is being used.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 12 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

(B) Matters pertaining to citizens present at the meeting, in the following order:

(1) Advertised Public Hearings.  The Chair will declare such a public hearing open and state its

purpose.  The petitioner, or proponent of the action advertised will be heard first.

(2) Persons requested by the Commission to attend the meeting.

(3) Other public participation for items on this agenda.

(C) Housekeeping business.

(1) Consent Business.

(2) Approval of Minutes.

(3) Approval of Department's expense report.

(4) Other.

(D) Unfinished business and reports (items considered here are taken up in the same order as

established by the Commission to fix a priority for consideration and work done in the planning office).

(1) Report from each member of the Commission on the segment of the [local unit of government] they

represent for the past month.

(E) New business (other business and communications).

(F) Public participation for items not on this agenda.

(G) Adjournment.

L. Delivery of Agenda.  The agenda and accompanying materials shall be mailed to Commission members so
it is reasonably expected to be received prior to the weekend prior to the regular meeting date, generally
accepted to be, but not always, mailed by first class mail on the Thursday of the week prior to the Commission
meeting, pursuant to section 5.A.

M. Placement of Items on the Agenda. 
1. The [Planning Department/Zoning Administrator] shall be the office of record for the Commission.
2. The [Planning Department/Zoning Administrator] may receive items on behalf of the Commission between

the time of the adjournment of the previous Commission meeting and eight business days prior to the next
regularly scheduled Commission meeting.

3. Items received by the [Planning Department/Zoning Administrator] between seven business days prior
to the next regularly scheduled Commission meeting and the next regularly scheduled Commission
meeting shall be set aside to be received by the Commission at its next regularly scheduled Commission
meeting.  The Commission may act on those items of a minor nature or table action to the subsequent
regular or special Commission meeting.  Those items of a major nature, or items normally receiving staff
review, analysis, or recommendation shall be tabled until the subsequent regular or special Commission
meeting.

4. The deadline to add items to the Commission's meeting agenda shall be seven business days prior to the
next regularly scheduled Commission meeting.

6. Record.

A. Minutes and Record. The Commission Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, a record of Commission
meetings, which, shall at a minimum include an indication of the following:
1. Copy of the meeting posting pursuant to P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended, (being the Michigan Open

Meetings Act, M.C.L. 15.261 et seq.)
2. Copy of the minutes, and all its attachments which shall include a summary of the meeting, in

chronological sequence of occurrence:
a. Time and place the meeting was called to order.
b. Attendance.
c. Indication of others present (listing names if others choose to sign in and/or a count of those present).
d. Summary or text of points of all reports (including reports of what was seen and discussed at a site

inspection) given at the meeting, and who gave the report and in what capacity.  An alternative is to
attach a copy of the report if offered in writing.

e. Summary of all points made in public participation or at a hearing by the applicant, officials, and
guests and an indication of who made the comments.  An alterative is to attach a copy of the public’s
statement, petition, or letter if it is provided in written form.

f. Full text of all motions introduced, whether seconded or not, who made the motion and who seconded
the motion.  For each motion, the following should be included:
(1) W ho testified and a summary of what was said..
(2) A statement of what is being approved (e.g. special use permit, variance, conditional use permit,

subdivision, land division, etc.)



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 13 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

(3) The location of the property involved (tax parcel number and description, legal description is
best).

(4) W hat exhibits were submitted (list each one, describe each, number or letter each and refer to
the letter or number in the minutes).

(5) W hat evidence was considered (summary of discussion by members at the meeting).
(6) The administrative body’s findings of fact.
(7) Reasons for the decision made.  (If the action is to deny, then each reason should refer to a

section of an ordinance which would be violated or with which not complied.)
(8) The decision (e.g. approve, deny, approve with modification).
(9) A list of all required improvements (and if they are to be built up-front or name the type of

performance security to be used), if any.  
(10)List of all changes to the map/drawing/site plan that was submitted.  (Sometimes it is easier to

use a black flair felt pen and draw the changes on the map of what was applied for, rather than
listing the changes.  Do not use different colors.  The map will most likely be photo copied.  Then
colors on the copy will not show at all or will just be black.)

(11)Make the map/drawing/site plan part of the motion (e.g. "...attached to the original copy of these
minutes as appendix `A', and made a part of these minutes...").

g. W ho called the question.
h. The type of vote and its outcome.  If a roll call vote, indicate who voted yes, no, abstained or a

statement the vote was unanimous.  If not a roll call vote, then simply a statement: “the motion
passed/failed after a voice vote.”

i. That a person making a motion withdrew it from consideration.
j. All the Chair's rulings.
k. All challenges, discussion and vote/outcome on a Chair's ruling.
l. All parliamentary inquiries or point of order.
m. W hen a voting member enters or leaves the meeting.
n. W hen a voting member or staff member has a conflict of interest and when the voting member

ceases and resumes participation in discussion, voting and deliberations at a meeting.
o. All calls for an attendance count, the attendance, and ruling if a quorum exists or not.
p. The start and end of each recess.
q. All Chair's rulings of discussion being out of order.
r. Full text of any resolutions offered.
s. Summary of announcements.
t. Summary of informal actions, or agreement on consensus.
u. Time of adjournment.

3. Records of any action, support documents, maps, site plans, photographs, correspondence received,
attached as an appendix to the minutes.

B. Retention.  Commission records shall be preserved and kept on file according to the following schedule:
1. Minutes, bonds, oaths of officials, zoning ordinances, master or compressive plans, other records of

decisions, Commission or department publications: Permanent.
2. General ledger: 20 years.
3. Account journals: 10 years.
4. Bills and/or invoices, receipts, purchase orders, vouchers: 7 years.
5. Correspondence: Permanent.

7. Committees

A. Executive Committee.
1. The Executive Committee shall be a standing committee of the Commission.  Its membership shall be

the Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary of the Commission and they shall hold the same offices on the
committee.  The Executive Committee may deal with recommendations to the Commission on matters
of the Commission budget; employment of a [Planning Department/Zoning Administrator]; overseeing the
[Planning Department/Zoning Adm inistrator]'s day-to-day adm inistration of the [Planning
Department/Office of the Zoning Administrator]; office and personnel policy; and anything else directed
to the Executive Committee by the Commission.

2. The Executive Committee has limited power to act only on housekeeping matters, budget, office policy,
and overseeing contracts and personnel when time constraints require action prior to the next regularly



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 14 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

scheduled Commission meeting.  Such actions shall be reported at the next regularly scheduled
Commission meeting and are subject to the Commission's review and/or veto.

B. Ad Hoc Committees.  The Commission or Chair may establish and appoint ad hoc committees for special
purposes or issues, as deemed necessary.  Less than a quorum may serve on an ad hoc committee at any
given time.

C. Citizen Committees.  The Commission, Chair, or [Planning Department/Zoning Administrator]  may establish
and appoint citizen committees with the consent of the Commission.  Membership can be any number, so long
as less than a quorum of the Commission serve on a citizen committee at any given time.  The purpose of
the citizen committee is to have more citizen and municipal government involvement, to be able to use
individuals who are knowledgeable or expert in the particular issue before the Commission and to better
represent various interest groups in the [local unit of government].

8. Rules of Procedure for All Committees

A. Subservient to the Commission.  All committees are subservient to the Commission and report their
recommendations to the Commission for review and action.  The Commission can overrule any action of any
committee.

B. Same Principles.  The same principals of these Bylaws for the Commission also apply to all committees of
the Commission including, but not limited to:
1. Officers.  Officers of committees are appointed by the Chair of the Commission at the time the committee

is created, or are elected by the committee's membership at their first meeting.  Officers, at a minimum,
include a Chair and Secretary-Vice-Chair.

2. Quorum.  A committee's quorum shall be at least half the total appointed membership of the committee.
3. Voting.  Only those appointed members of a committee, who are present at the time of a vote shall be

eligible to cast a vote.
4. Attendance.  If any member of a committee is absent from three consecutively scheduled meetings, then

that member shall be considered delinquent.  Delinquency shall be grounds for the Commission to
remove any member from the committee.  The committee Secretary-Vice-Chair or acting committee
Secretary in the absence of the elected committee Secretary-Vice-Chair shall keep attendance records
and notify the Commission of any committee member who is absent from three consecutively scheduled
meetings so the Commission may consider removal of the individual from the committee or excuse the
absence(s).

5. Minutes.  The Secretary-Vice-Chair of the committee shall keep minutes of the committee meetings in
the same format used by the Commission and filed in the same office as the Commission’s minutes.

6. Staff.  Committees have reasonable use of [Planning Department/Zoning Administrator] staff time and
assistance and direction for performing the work of the committee.

7. Public.  All committee meetings are open meetings available for public attendance and participation and
minutes of the meetings are to be available for public inspection under the same principals found in P.A.
267 of 1976, as amended, (being Michigan Open Meetings Act, M.C.L. 15.261 et seq.).

8. Subcommittees.  Citizen committees may form subcommittees from their own membership and/or with
additional citizens when deemed necessary.  Subcommittees are subservient to the parent committee.
Subcommittees are informal, not requiring quorums, attendance requirements, minutes, or public
participation.  Subcommittee membership shall consist of less than half the parent committee's
membership.

9. [local unit of government] Department and Subdivisions; and Intergovernmental Coordination.

The Commission shall be responsible for coordination of all related plans between departments or
subdivisions of [local unit of government] and intergovernmental coordination of all related planned activities
among the state, federal, and municipal governments concerned.  The Commission may use committees
(pursuant to section 7.B of these rules), [Planning Department/Zoning Administrator] staff, citizen committees
(pursuant to section 7.C of these rules), and interagency staff teams for purposes of accomplishing coordination.
If a staff team is used, the team shall not be a committee of the Planning Commission or any other public body
and shall not be a public body.  The team shall be an employee level technical review with only powers to
recommend.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 15 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

10. Mileage and Per Diem

A. Mileage and per diem shall be paid to members of
the Commission at rates established by the
[legislative body] for attending Commission
meetings and Executive Committee meetings, and
other authorized meetings and trips to represent the
[local unit of government], if those Commission
members bill the [local unit of government] for the
same.  Only mileage shall be paid for attendance at
ad hoc committee meetings, if those Commission
members bill the [local unit of government] for the
same.  No m ileage or per diem is paid to any
members of a citizen committee, unless authorized
and budgeted by the [legislative body] with
recommendation by the Commission.

11. Hearings

A. Plan Hearings.  Before the adoption of any part of a plan, as defined in the Planning Act, or any amendment
to a plan, or recommending approval of an amendment to the [legislative body], the Commission shall hold
a public hearing on the matter.  Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given, not less than 15
days prior to such hearing, by at least one publication in each newspaper of general circulation.

B. Special Hearings.  Notice of special hearings for the
purposes of presenting preliminary master plans,
obtaining public opinion on a problem, or discussion
of a particular problem with interested parties will be
given in the most practical manner and to persons,
or group representatives most interested, and as
required by the Planning Act, Zoning Act, and
relevant local zoning ordinance.

C. Notice of Decision.  A written notice containing the
decision of the Commission will be sent to petitioners and originators of a request for the Commission to study
a special problem.

12. Zoning Responsibilities

A. All powers of the zoning commission have been
transferred to this Commission, pursuant to M.C.L.
125.3301 of the Zoning Act.

B. Zoning adoption or amendment (including PUD
zoning amendments).  The commission shall review
and act on all proposed zoning ordinances, or
zoning amendments pursuant to the Zoning Act.  At
least one hearing shall be held on each proposed zoning ordinance or amendment, with notices given as
specified in the zoning ordinance and the Zoning Act.  After the hearing, action shall be in the form of a
recommendation to the legislative body.  At a minimum the recommendation shall include:
1. Zoning plan for the areas subject to zoning, or zoning amendment of the local unit of government;
2. The establishment of or modification of zoning districts, including the boundaries of those districts, if

applicable;
3. The text of a zoning ordinance or amendment with the necessary maps and zoning regulations to be

adopted for a zoning district or the zoning jurisdiction as a whole; and
4. The manner of administering and enforcing the zoning ordinance.

The Statute Requires:
“A planning commission may adopt bylaws
relative to compensation and expenses of its
members and employees for travel when
engaged in the performance of activities
authorized by the legislative body, including,
but not limited to, attendance at conferences,
workshops, educational and training programs,
and meetings” §23(1).

Special Hearings
If the planning commission does not have
zoning responsibilities, then reference to
zoning in section 11.B. of the Bylaws should
be deleted.

Zoning Responsibilities
If the planning commission does not have
zoning responsibilities then all of section 12.
of the Bylaws should be deleted.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 16 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

C. Special Use Permit (including PUDs).  The
Commission shall review and act on all special use
permits pursuant to the Zoning Act and zoning
ordinance.  At least one hearing shall be held on
each proposed zoning ordinance or amendment,
with notices given as specified in the zoning
ordinance and the Zoning Act.  After the hearing
action shall be in the form of a motion which
contains (or is included in the minutes) a finding of
fact, conclusions as to a list of reasons for the
action, and the Commission's action, pursuant to
section 5.E.2 of these Bylaws. 

D. Site Plan Review.  The Commission shall review
and act on all those site plans which the zoning
ordinance requires Commission action.   Action
shall be in the form of a motion which contains (or is
included in the minutes) a finding of fact, conclusions as to a list of reasons for the action, and the
Commission's action, pursuant to section 5.E.2 of these Bylaws.

E. Appeals.  The Commission shall not act, or otherwise hear issues on zoning ordinance interpretation, zoning
map interpretation, non-use variances, or use variances.  Such matters shall be exclusively the jurisdiction
of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

13. Plan Reviews.

A. The Commission shall review all adjacent, or contiguous, local government plans (township, village, and city),
adjacent county plans, local governments government plans (township, village, and city plans)  within the
boundaries serviced by the Commission, and the county plans in which the Commission’s service area is
located.

B. Action shall be in the form of a motion which contains (or is included in the minutes) a finding of fact,
conclusions as to a list of reasons for the action, and the Commission's advisory action, pursuant to section
5.E.2 of these Bylaws.

C. The review should focus on:
1. First and foremost, the process is intended to increase coordination of planning between governments.
2. Consistencies or inconsistencies with your government’s plan(s) for matters such as:

a. Border issues
b. Issues of greater than local concern
c. Comparison with local plan contents
d. Comparison with county/regional plan contents
e. Comparison to other relevant adopted plans (such as an historic preservation plan, local wetland

protection plan, TIF or brownfield redevelopment plan, etc.).
f. Comparison to various implementation strategies.

3. If the county planning commission considered
the proposed plan inconsistent with the plan of
any city, village, township, or region that
received a copy of the draft plan (or
amendment).

4. If the county planning commission considers
the draft plan (or amendment) to be
inconsistent with a county plan(s), if any.

5. Action by the Commission shall be based on, in
part, a review of possible boundary conflicts
between the plans of two municipalities.  If a boundary conflict is found to exist the following shall apply:
a. The assumption is made that there should not be any provision of a municipal plan which is in conflict

with the county plan. 
b. The Commission shall use compliance with the county plan as its main tool for purposes of

coordination of the proposed plans with the plans of municipalities having a common boundary.  If a
conflict is found to exist, it is not proper to assume the proposed plan is the problem.  The problem

Special Use Permits
Special Use permits and PUDs may be
reviewed and approved by a zoning
commission, planning commission, and
official charged with administering the
zoning ordinance or the legislative body. 
These bylaws are written assuming approval
is by the planning commission and a hearing
is automatically always held.  If that is not
the case, section 12.C. needs to be changed to
reflect local procedure.

Plan Reviews
Sections 13.C.3., 13.C.4., and 13.C.5. are for
county planning commissions only.  If these
bylaws are not for a county planning
commission sections 13.C.3., 13.C.4., and
13.C.5. should be deleted.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 17 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

could be the municipality which is adjacent to the municipality for which the plan is being reviewed.
The problem could be both plans.

c. The criteria to determine which municipality has the plan which causes the boundary conflict shall be
the Commission’s finding of compliance with the county plan.  The municipality (or both municipalities)
not in compliance with the county plan shall be deemed to have the plan which contributes to the
boundary conflict.

D. The review shall be in the form of a letter and shall take into account:
1. Respect for the idea that the submission and review stages are near the end of a plan adoption process.

A community may be ready to adopt and others may be waiting for the task to be done.  Do not extend
the adoption more than necessary.

2. Focus only on significant issues, in a clear and well documented way.  Suggest solutions rather than only
pointing out what is wrong.

3. Be clear and document statements to improve the quality of planning for the entire area.  This process
is to improve coordinated planning, not to undermine relationships or exacerbate tensions between
governments.

4. Include mutual respect of others, so the comments are factual, objective, and based on sound planning
principles.

14. Township Zoning Reviews.

A. The Commission shall review all  zoning ordinances
and zoning amendments for townships within the
county.

B. Action shall be in the form of a motion which
contains (or is included in the minutes) a finding of
fact, conclusions as to a list of reasons for the
action, and the Commission's advisory action,
pursuant to section 5.E.2 of these Bylaws.

C. Township zoning, which shall be submitted with the following information:
1. The text of the proposed ordinance,
2. The map for the proposed ordinance,
3. A letter from the township's attorney of their choice indicating:

a. proper procedure for adoption and
b. the ordinance has been reviewed against all other applicable statutes and law, and
c. the ordinance is appropriately drafted for use as a legal/ordinance document.

D. Action by the Commission shall be based, in part, on a review of possible boundary conflicts between the
zoning of two municipalities.  If a boundary conflict is found to exist the following shall apply:
1. The assumption is made that there should not be any provision of the township plan which is in conflict

with the county plan.  Thus the proposed zoning, which is based on the township plan, should also comply
with the county plan.

2. The Commission shall use compliance with the county plan as its main tool for purposes of coordination
of the proposed zoning ordinances with the zoning ordinances of other municipalities having a common
boundary with the township.  If a conflict is found to exist, it is not proper to assume the Township's
proposed zoning is the problem.  The problem could be the township or municipality which is adjacent to
the township for which the zoning is being reviewed.  The problem could be both zoning ordinances.

3. The criteria to determine which municipality has the zoning which causes the boundary conflict shall be
the Commission’s finding of compliance with the county plan.  The municipality (or both municipalities)
not in compliance with the county plan shall be deemed to have the zoning which contributes to the
boundary conflict.

E. The review shall be in the form of a letter and shall take into account:
1. Respect for the idea that the submission and review stages are near the end of a plan adoption process.

A community may be ready to adopt, and others may be waiting for the task to be done.  Do not extend
the adoption more than necessary.

2. Focus only on significant issues in a clear and well documented way.  Suggest solutions rather than only
pointing out what is wrong.

3. Be clear and document statements to improve the quality of planning for the entire area.  This process
is to improve coordinated planning, not to undermine relationships or exacerbate tensions between
governments.

Township Zoning Reviews
Section 14. is for county planning
commissions only.  If these bylaws are not
for a county planning commission, section
14. should be deleted.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 18 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

4. Include mutual respect of others, so the comments are factual, objective, and based on sound planning
principles.

15. Capital Improvements Review

A. Capital Improvements (the removal, relocation,
widening, narrowing, vacating, abandonment,
change of use or extension of any public way,
grounds, agricultural land, open spaces, buildings,
or properties before work is started and after
municipal capital improvement planning approval is
obtained).  If the funding for the capital improvement
project is from a grant, this approval must be obtained prior to applying for the grant or done as part of the
state or federal grant clearinghouse process.

B. All preliminary plans and reports for the physical development of the [local unit of government], including the
general location, character and extent of streets and roads, viaducts, bridges, farmland, agricultural land,
forest land, parks and open spaces; the general location of public buildings and other public property; the
general location and extent of public utilities and terminals.

C. Action shall be in the form of a motion which contains (or is included in the minutes) a finding of fact,
conclusions as to a list of reasons for the action, and the Commission's advisory action, pursuant to section
5.E.2 of these Bylaws.

D. W hen reviewing the proposed project the planning commission should at a minimum consider the following
issues.  If the answer to any of the below is “no,” then the planning commission’s review of the project should
not be favorable.
1. Is the proposed project consistent with adopted plans?
2. Is the project consistent with other governmental management plans? 
3. Is the project consistent with the plans of each municipality located within or contiguous to the local unit

of government?
4. Is the project consistent with adopted, if any, capital improvement plans?

E. The review shall be in the form of a letter, sent within 35 days after the proposal is filed for review, and shall
take into account:
1. Respect for the idea that the submission and review stages are near the end of a process.  A community

may be ready to start construction and others may be waiting for the task to be done.
2. Focus only on significant issues in a clear and well documented way.  Suggest solutions rather than only

pointing out what is wrong.
3. Be clear and document statements to improve the quality of planning for the entire area.  This process

is to improve coordinated planning, not to undermine relationships or exacerbate tensions between
governments or agencies of governments.

4. Include mutual respect of others, so the comments are factual, objective, and based on sound planning
principles.

16. Capital Improvements Program

A. Annually, a capital improvement program (CIP) of
public structures and improvement shall be
adopted.

B. To do so, the Commission shall establish a
committee consisting of volunteers from the
community or a combination of volunteers and
representatives from each department within the
local unit of government.

C. The planning commission should also include the
following individual,  individuals, agencies, and
departments in preparing the CIP.
1. Chief Executive (city manager, department

h e a d s ,  to w n s h i p  m a n a g e r ,  c o u n t y
controller/administrator, supervisor, city mayor,
village president, etc.);

2. All departments within the government;

The Statute Requires:
Section 61 of the Planning Act addresses CIP
reviews, details of how that is done can be in
the bylaws.

The Statute Requires:
Section 65 of the Planning Act ....

Section 16 should be deleted if the
planning commission is exempted from this
duty by charter, because the legislative body
asserts its authority to do so.  This may be
deleted in a township without water and/or
sewer utilities or may be left in if the
township chooses to do a CIP anyway.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 19 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

3. Finance and budget department: The financial office or the person responsible who conducts  the financial
analysis and projections on costs and revenues for a capital improvement program and determines the
best possible means to finance each capital project.  

4. The Planning department staff (if any exist). 
D. The committee shall cause to be requested from each agency or department of the local unit of government

(with authority for public structures or improvements) for an annual inventory of desired public improvement
projects with lists, plans and estimates of time and cost involved.

E. The committee or planning staff shall organize the proposed public structures and improvements in the
general order of their priority, that in the committee’s judgment will be needed or desired or can be undertaken
in the ensuing 6-year period.
1. In doing so, the committee may make use of expert advice and information from staff from the planning

department or private consultants:
a. Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements

–and Management's Discussing and Analysis– For State and Local Governments. 
b. Population studies
c. Economic studies
d. Land Use Maps
e. Future Plans

2. In doing so, the committee shall develop a formal set of criteria or use other techniques to use to organize
the proposed public structures and improvements in order of importance. The following issues at a
minimum should be considered: 
a. Description, location, and purpose of project;
b. Justification for the need for project; 
c. An explanation of its relationship to other projects; 
d. The cost of project (submit detailed budget); 
e. Estimated annual income from projects; 
f. Estimated annual operation costs for the project; 
g. Status of plans/specifications for the project and the expected length of time the capital project will

last;
h. Year construction of project should start;
i. The rank/importance of project within department submitting it;
j. Environmental, health, and safety impacts and energy consumption.

3. The proposed public structures and improvements in order of importance shall be considered a draft CIP,
which shall be presented to the Commission.

F. The planning commission shall review the CIP:
1. The review shall include each project to determine the conformance of the projects with community

comprehensive plans, development policies, and the objectives and goals of the community. 
2. The review shall include an opportunity for agencies to present their arguments for why any given project

should be included in the program and at what order of priority.
3. Upon completion of the review, a second draft of the CIP shall be prepared.

G. The planning commission shall hold a public hearing on the second draft of the CIP.
H. After the hearing, if needed, a third draft of the CIP shall be prepared.  The planning commission then:

1. Formally adopts the CIP in the form of a recommendation to the legislative body for adoption; or 
2. Adopts an amended version of the CIP in the form of a recommendation to the legislative body for

adoption; or
3. Does not approve, thus does not adopt the ranked listing/project priorities, and proceeds to further revise

the CIP until the Commission is prepared to adopt the CIP.
I. If the legislative body refers the CIP back to the Commission, the Commission shall further review the CIP,

make modifications, and submit another version of the CIP to the legislative body.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 20 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

17. Subdivision Review

A. Prepare a Subdivision Ordinance (and/or
Subdivision, Land Division, Site-Condominium
Ordinance), or amendments to the same, to submit
to the legislative body

B. Proposed Subdivisions.
1. Staff for the Commission is to receive a plat and

determine that the submission is complete.  If
incomplete, the plat shall be returned to the
applicant with a list of deficiencies.  If complete,
the plat shall be received on behalf of the
Commission.

2. Conduct a review of plats of proposed
subdivisions (and/or site-condominium).

3. Hold a hearing on a proposed subdivision
(and/or site-condominium) with notice of the
hearing sent not sent less than 15 days before
the date of the hearing.
a. The notice shall contain an explanation of

what the hearing is for, the location and
nature of the proposed development, the
date, time, place of the hearing, where
written comments may be submitted, and
the deadline for those written comments.

b. The notice shall be sent to the person
indicated on the plat (and/or draft site-
condominium master deed) as the
proprietor or other person(s) to whom
notice of the hearing shall be sent, the
property owner, and adjacent property
owners.

c. The notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the [local unit of government]
d. Any others as required by the Subdivision Ordinance (and/or Subdivision, Land Division, Site-

Condominium Ordinance).
4. W ithin 63 days of a complete plat (and/or draft site-condominium master deed) being submitted, act on

the proposed subdivision (and/or site-condominium) in the form of a recommendation to the legislative
body of the municipality in which the proposed subdivision (and/or site-condominium) is located.
a. If applicable standards under the Land Division Act (M.C.L. 560.101 et seq.), Condominium Act

(M.C.L. 559.101 et seq.) if applicable, and Subdivision Ordinance (and/or Subdivision, Land Division,
Site-Condominium Ordinance), the Commission shall recommend approval.

b. Grounds for any recommendation of disapproval of a plat (and/or Site-Condominiums) shall be stated
upon the record of the Commission.

c. If the Commission does not act within the 63-day period, the plat (and/or Site-Condominiums) shall
be considered to have been recommended for approval, and a certificate to that effect shall be issued
by the Commission upon request of the applicant.  The applicant may waive the 63-day period and

grant an extension.
C. Master Plan Amendment.  Commission approval of

a subdivision shall be considered to be an
amendment to the master plan and a part there of.
The Commission shall cause the official copies of
the master plan to be modified to reflect the
amendment to the master plan within 30 days of the
subdivision approval.

18. Other Matters to be considered by the Commission

A. Commission Action.  The following matters shall be
presented for consideration at a meeting of the
Commission:

The Statute Requires:
Section 71 of the Planning Act, for
subdivision reviews.  These bylaws should
include detail on how review of subdivisions
are handled when the community has adopted
its subdivision review ordinance.

Site-Condominium and Land
Division regulations might also be included
in one comprehensive ordinance.  However
the review of site-condominiums must be
based on authority found in the
Condominium Act, M.C.L. 559.101 et seq.  It
is not enough to just indicate in the bylaws
review of site-condominiums will be done. 
Such authority mut be done by adopted
ordinance.  Consult the local government’s
attorney.

Land Division reviews should be
done by the tax assessor or other designated
official: that is a individual person, not a
board or commission (M.C.L. 560.109(1)).

Other Matters considered by the
Commission
Section 12.A. about matters to come before
the Commission, and other duties the
Commission may have should be reviewed
carefully to insure there are not any additions
or deletions.  It is appropriate to delete those
that do not apply.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 21 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

1. At least annually, the adoption of priorities for the Commission's plan of work.
2. Annually, preparation of an annual report of the Commission.
3. Office, or Administrative Policy and ruling of interpretation of regulations by the Commission or its staff.
4. The general character, extent and layout of the replanning and redevelopment of blighted districts and

slum areas.
5. Land subdivision plats.
6. All address changes pursuant to the [local unit of government]  Address Ordinance, as amended.
7. All Planning reports and plans before publication.
8. Matters which properly come before the [local unit of government]  County Designated Solid W aste

Planning Agency, pursuant to Part 115 of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, (being the Solid W aste
Management part of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, M.C.L. 324.11501 et seq.)

9. Soil and Sedimentation Control Board of
Appeals cases.

10. All matters of business of the [local unit of
government]  County Resource Conservation
and Development Committee, with the
Commission acting as that committee.

11. All matters of business of the [local unit of
government]  County policy committee as
created by the [local unit of government]
County Remonumentation Plan.

12. All matters of business concerning [local unit of
government]’s computer, or digital, Geographic
Information System (GIS) as delegated by the
[legislative body] on [date] with power to act.

13. Planning Department’s and Commission's
budget requirements for the fiscal year and
request for appropriation.

14. Selection of consultants and determination of
basis for compensation and selection of a
Planning Director.

15. Such other matters as the Director shall find it advisable or essential to receive consideration by the
Commission.

B. Staff Policy.  From time to time the Commission shall publish policy to further define and categorize work done
by staff for municipalities in [local unit of government]  County as:
1. Tasks which are a basic purpose of the County Planning Commission and for which no charge or fee shall

be charged.
2. A secondary purpose of the Commission which is to include "assistance" to municipalities in [local unit

of government]  County for which a fee may or may not be charged, as may be established from time to
time by the Commission.

3. A secondary purpose of the Commission which is to include "work" on a contract or for hire basis by
municipalities in [local unit of government]  County for which a fee shall be charged, as established from
time to time by the Commission.

C. Fees.  The Commission shall from time to time establish fees for services, municipal "assistance", or
municipal "work".  Such fees shall not contravene any state statute, county ordinance, or fee established by
the [local unit of government] legislative body.

19. Commission staff

A. Authorization.  The Commission staff may consist of
a Planning Director and such other personnel as
may be authorized by the Commission after the
budget for the same is approved by the [local unit of
government].
1. Planning Director selection shall in addition to

[local unit of government] policy and/or Labor
Contract requirements include considering this
position as necessary to fill from candidates

County only:
Sections 18.A.8., 18.A.10., and

18.A.11. apply to county planning
commissions only, and should be deleted in
city, village, and township planning
commission bylaws.

Section 18.A.9. does not apply to a
township planning commission.  Section
18.A.9. should be deleted for a township
bylaws and only left in a city or village
planning commission bylaws if the city or
village is the designated soil and
sedimentation control agency. 

Commission staff
Section 13 on Commission staff should be
omitted if there is no staff. Section 5.M.,
section 8, section 12.B. and section 12.C.
should also be changed to reflect that there is
no staff or some other office will handle the
functions.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 22 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

representing more than just the [local unit of government]  labor market.  Thus, any advertising for this
position should appear, in order of priority in:
a. Planning and Zoning News of Lansing

b. Newspapers of general circulation in [local unit of government] 
c. Michigan State University Career Placement Bulletin
d. University of Michigan Career Placement Bulletin
e. W ayne State University Career Placement Bulletin
f. Central Michigan University Career Placement Bulletin
g. Northern Michigan University Career Placement Bulletin
h. Detroit News-Free Press Sunday edition (optional)
i. American Planning Association Job Mart (optional, only if nation-wide candidate search is desired).

2. Assistant Planner(s) selection shall in addition to [local unit of government] policy and/or Labor Contract
requirements include considering these positions as necessary to fill from candidates representative of
labor markets both in and outside the [local unit of government].  Thus, any advertising for this position
should appear, in order of priority in:
a. Planning and Zoning News of Lansing

b. Newspapers of general circulation in [local unit of government] 
c. Michigan State University Career Placement Bulletin
d. University of Michigan Career Placement Bulletin
e. Central Michigan University Career Placement Bulletin
f. Northern Michigan University Career Placement Bulletin
g. Detroit News-Free Press Sunday edition (optional)
h. American Planning Association Job Mart (optional, only if nation-wide candidate search is desired).

3. Zoning Administrator(s) selection shall in addition to [local unit of government] policy and/or Labor
Contract requirements include considering these positions as necessary to fill from candidates
representative of labor markets both in and outside the [local unit of government].  Thus, any advertising
for this position should appear, in order of priority in:
a. Planning and Zoning News of Lansing

b. Newspapers of general circulation in [local unit of government] 
c. Michigan State University Career Placement Bulletin
d. University of Michigan Career Placement Bulletin
e. Central Michigan University Career Placement Bulletin
f. Northern Michigan University Career Placement Bulletin
g. Detroit News-Free Press Sunday edition (optional)
h. American Planning Association Job Mart (optional, only if nation-wide candidate search is desired).

4. Planning Department Secretary(ies), Planning Technicians, and Assistant Zoning Administrators selection
shall in addition to  [local unit of government] policy and/or Labor Contract requirements include
considering this position to be filled from the [local unit of government] labor market area with advertising
in local media.

B. General Responsibility.  The Commission staff is charged with the duty of preparation and administration of
such plans as are authorized by the Commission, appropriate for the [local unit of government] and its
environs and are within the scope of the Planning Act and the Zoning Act.

C. Advocacy.  The Commission staff shall not attempt to represent the views or comments of a member of the
public at a public hearing or Commission meeting.  Staff shall indicate a member of the public wishing to make
their views known and they should do so directly to the Commission in person, through an agent,  or by
providing written comment.  Staff should avoid situations of appearing to advocate for an individual or group.
Nothing herein is intended to prevent staff from helping an individual or group be better informed and to
present their own views.  Nothing herein is intended to prevent staff from expressing their own views as
private citizens.

D. Coordinated Enforcement.  To further supplement the small number of staff responsible for inspections and
enforcement of various regulations, staff shall report all suspected problems or violations seen during the
course of their work.  Staff shall follow the following procedures and guidelines:
1. W hen observing a problem or suspected violation, do not assume a violation exists or confront the

suspected perpetrator.  Avoid a situation where discussion or confrontation exists in an area outside the
staff person's jurisdiction.

2. Report the problem or suspected violation to the [local unit of government] department, county, state, or
federal agency which has jurisdiction, as quickly as possible.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 23 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

3. W hen observing or receiving a report from another [local unit of government] department, county, state,
or federal agency, of a problem or suspected violation, pursue enforcement, or its resolution through
normal procedures for the particular situation.

E. Conflict of Interest.
1. All members of the Commission's staff shall

avoid situations which are conflicts of interest,
and/or incompatibility of office.  As used here, a
conflict of interest shall at a minimum include,
but not necessarily be limited to, the following:
a. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or

reviewing a case concerning him or her.
b. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or

reviewing a case concerning work on land
owned by him or her or which is adjacent to
land owned by him or her.

c. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or
reviewing a case involving a corporation,
company, partnership, or any other entity in
which he or she is a part owner, or any
other relationship where he or she may
stand to have a financial gain or loss.

d. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or
reviewing a case which is an action which
results in a pecuniary benefit to him or her.

e. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or
reviewing a case concerning his or her
s p o u s e ,  c h i l d r e n ,  s t e p - c h i ld r e n ,
grandchildren, parents, brothers, sisters,
grandparents, parents in-law, grandparents
in-law, or members of his or her household.

f. Issuing, deliberating on, voting on, or
reviewing a case where his or her employee
or employer is:
(1) an applicant or agent for an applicant,

or
(2) has a direct interest in the outcome.

2. W hen a conflict of interest exists staff shall do
all of the following immediately, upon first review
of the case and determining a conflict exists:
a. declare a conflict exists,
b. cease to process the case any further, and
c. forward the case, and all pertinent records, to an alternate, assistant, or manager so the case is dealt

with by someone else.
3. Other than as part of work for the Commission staff shall not (1) provide private consultation services, or

advise on similar related services for clients,  (2) provide work in professions or services which is or could
be regulated by the Commission (such as, but not limited to planning, zoning, real estate, land
development, solid waste, land surveying, architecture, professional and civil engineering, landscape
architecture, sociology, economics, geography, political science, public administration consulting or work)
within a site within the boundaries of [local unit of government] or for clients who are or may be applicants
before the Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, or the Commission’s staff.  This is not intended to
prevent a staff person from assisting residents, municipalities, or others seeking help from the
Commission, which are normally part of an employee's duties.

F. Planning Director's Duties.  The Planning Director shall be responsible for the professional and administrative
work in directing and coordinating the program of the Commission.  His or her work shall be carried on with
the widest degree of professional responsibility, subject to the policy determinations and job description as
adopted from time to time by the Commission and administrative policies of the County.  In addition to any

Adjacent Land and Conflict of Interest
Some thought should be given to how

far away from one’s own property one goes
to consider it to be a conflict of interest.  In a
very small community, with a large distance
from the property, it may be hard to ever have
a situation which is not a conflict for a
number of members of the Commission.. 
This practical matter should be balanced with
the need to avoid the appearance of conflict
and actual conflicts.

Courts have only gone as far as the
adjacent parcel, and do not consider it a
conflict beyond that.  Some communities
have used a “within 300 feet” standard (the
same distance where notices are required).

Family and Conflict of Interest
Some thought should be given to how

expansive, or limited, the list of who is
included in “family” is.  In a very small
community, with an expansive list of family,
it may be hard to ever have a situation which
is not a conflict.  This practical matter should
be balanced with the need to avoid
appearance and actual conflicts.



# 1E Sample Bylaws for a Planning Commission Page 24 of 24

Michigan State University Extension Land Use Series May 19, 2008

job description adopted from time to time by the Commission, the basic fundamentals of the Planning
Director's job shall include, but not be limited to:
1. Recommendations.  The Planning Director shall take action or make recommendations in the name of

the Commission, in accordance with such plans, policies and procedures as are approved or established
by the Commission from time to time.  W here there is a serious conflict of interest, public controversy,
or uncertainty or doubt as to the plans, policies, or procedures approved or established by the
Commission, presentation of the matter shall be made at a Commission meeting.

2. Administrative Duties.  The Planning Director shall:
a. Supervise and review the work of the professional, technical, and nontechnical employees of the

Commission staff.
b. Prepare a proposed annual budget for the Commission and Department to submit to the Commission.

3. Policy Formulation.  The Planning Director shall:
a. Be responsible for carrying out the directives of the Commission.
b. Advise and assist the Commission in the establishment of general planning policy.
c. W ork with the Chair of the Commission for formulation of staff policy, subject to approval by the

Commission.
d. Recommend to the Commission action necessary for effectuating plans with respect to both public

and private endeavors.
e. Administer zoning and subdivision ordinances.
f. Prepare drafts of Capital Improvement Programs.
g. Prepare long range comprehensive plans and other plans.

4. Public Relations.  The Planning Director shall:
a. Officially present the Commission's

recommendations to the governing body.
b. Officially represent the Commission and its

s t a f f  a t  p la n n in g  c o n f e r e n c e s ,
interdepartmental meetings of the county
government, and serve generally as a
liaison between the Commission and the
public.

c. Encourage private development or
investment in accord with comprehensive
plans.

d. Cooperate with public and private agencies
and with individuals for the development,
acceptance, and effectuation of plans.

e. Supply information for and encourage interested public agencies and citizen organizations in
programs to promote public understanding of and government cooperation with planning efforts.

f. Accept other responsibilities as may be directed by the Commission, Governing Body, or Chief
Executive.

5. Commission duties delegated to the Planning Director:
a. To oversee and coordinate Commission staff teams, pursuant to section 9 of these rules as directed.

G. Other Staff Duties.  The Commission shall establish, with consultation with the Planning Director from time
to time, updated job descriptions for each staff position in the Planning Department.

20. Adoption, Repeal, Amendments

A. Upon adoption of these Bylaws of [date], they shall become effective and all previous Bylaws, shall be
repealed.

B. The Commission may suspend any one of these Bylaws, for a duration of not more than one agenda item or
meeting.

C. These Bylaws may be amended at any regular or special meeting by a two-thirds (b) vote of the members
present.

[May 19, 2008; Wexford County MSUE CED: C:\Documents and Settings\Kurt Schindler\My Documents\wp\Presentation Handouts\2008MiPlanningEnablingAct\pamphlet1E
PlanComm ByLaws.wpd]

Spokesperson
Section 3.D. of these Bylaws also provides
for a spokesperson for the Commission. 
Make sure the provision in section 3.D. does
not contradict with the staff performing that
function here.  Consider omitting the
reference here or editing section 3.D. to make
a cross-reference to here (§19.F.4.a.).


	0 Agenda
	1 4057 Dix - Car Wash - Conceptual Review
	1.1 4057 Dix - Planset for review
	Odell Car Wash-SP1
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Odell Car Wash-A1
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Odell Car Wash-A2
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Building sketch
	Circulation sketch
	Responses

	1.2 4057 Dix - Departmental Review - Engineering
	1.3 4057 DIX_Site Plan_ App(CAR WASH)
	1.4 4057 DIX_Special Land Use_App (CAR WASH)
	2 3419 Fort St - SPR
	2.1 3419 Fort St - Planset for Review
	1750 A-1
	1750 SP-1
	3419 Fort St Survey
	3419 FORT ST_GAMEZ_LetterOfResponse

	2.2 3419 Fort St - Departmental Review - Engineering
	2.3 3419 Fort St - Departmental Review - Police
	2.4 3419 Fort St - Application
	3 2017 Lincoln Park Planning Commission Annual Report
	4 Sample bylaws
	1. Name Purpose
	2. Membership
	Members
	Liaisons.
	Attendance.
	Training.
	Incompatibility of Office.

	3. 
	Ex Parte contact 
	Site Inspections
	Accepting gifts
	Spokesperson for the Commission

	4. Officers
	Selection
	Tenure
	Chair's Duties
	Vice-Chair’s Duties
	Secretary’s Duties
	Deputy Secretary’s Duties
	Recording Secretary’s Duties

	5. Meetings
	Regular meetings
	Special Meetings
	Recess
	Quorum
	Motions
	Voting
	Commission Action
	Parliamentary Procedure
	Public Participation
	Consensus Business
	Order of Business.  Agenda
	Delivery of Agenda
	Placement of Items on the Agenda

	6. Record
	Minutes and Record
	Retention

	7. Committees
	Executive Committee
	Ad Hoc Committees
	Citizen Committees

	8. Rules of Procedure for All Committees
	Subservient to the Commission
	Same Principles

	9. [local unit of government] Department and Subdivisions; and Intergovernmental Coordination
	10. Mileage and Per Diem
	11. Hearings
	Plan Hearings
	Special Hearings
	Notice of Decision

	18. Other Matters to be considered by the Commission
	Commission Action
	Staff Policy
	Fees

	19. Commission staff
	Authorization
	General Responsibility
	Advocacy
	Coordinated Enforcement
	Conflict of Interest
	Planning Director's Duties
	Other Staff Duties

	20. Adoption, Repeal, Amendments


